
June 24, 2019City Council Agenda   Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JUNE 24, 2019 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 
Members: 

Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President, John Halverson, Council Vice President, Cindy Flower,  
Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Mayor Hartz calls the meeting to order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Alderperson Howell 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 

 
a. Announcement; The City has opened the annual plan amendment process which will run in conjunction 

with the ten-year update of the City of Lake Geneva’s Comprehensive Plan 
 

5. Re-consider business from previous meeting 
 

6. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 

 
7. Acknowledgement of Correspondence 

 
8. Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of June 10, 2019, as prepared and distributed 

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on June 4, 2019 & June 18, 2019 

Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request 
requires no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 

 
a. 2019-2020 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet 

 
b. Temporary Operator License Application filed by Robert McCormick to be used at the St Francis De Sales Fall 

Festival  
 

c. Temporary Class “B”/ “Class B” Retailer’s License filed by the Lake Geneva Rotary Club to be used at the 
Lake Geneva Oktoberfest on Saturday, October 12, 2019 (11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) and Sunday, October 13, 
2019 (11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.); Beer tent to be located in street between 726 Geneva St and 727 Geneva St 

 
10. First Reading of Ordinance 19-10 amending subsections (a) and (c ) of Section 50-202, Residency near Child Safety 

Zones, and Repealing Subsection (d) of Section 50-202, Residency near Child Safety Zones, Section 50-203, 
Loitering, and Section 50-204, Exceptions to Loitering of Article IV, Child Safety Zones of Chapter 50, Offenses and 
Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Municipal Code of the City of Lake Geneva, Relating to amending the distance for 
Child Safety Zones within the City of Lake Geneva, Prohibitions against residency by sexually violent criminals, and 
loitering near child safety zones 

 
 

 
City of Lake Geneva 
626 Geneva St 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
(262) 248-3673 
www.cityoflakegeneva.com 

 



June 24, 2019City Council Agenda   Page 2 of 3 

11. Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of June 4, 2019 & June 18, 2019- Ald 
Howell 

 
a. Discussion/Action regarding awarding the 2019 Street Improvement Project Bid (including Engineer costs) to 

Payne & Dolan in an amount not to exceed $750,000 
 
b. Discussion/Action regarding the purchase and installation of fence for the Department of Public Works from 

Century Fence in an amount not to exceed $26,955 to be paid from the Capital Projects fund 
 

c. Discussion/Action regarding Renewal of 2019-2020 “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor & Class “B” Fermented 
Malt Beverage license application filed by Samson Enterprises LLC d/b/a Northsiders, 642 W Main St, 
Michelle Norgard, Agent 

 
d. Discussion/Action regarding Renewal of 2019-2020 Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage license application 

filed by Tienda El Rancho Inc d/b/a Tienda El Rancho, 1151 Elkhorn Rd, Mercedes Jaramillo, Agent  
 
e. Discussion/Action regarding an Original “Class A” Intoxicating Liquor license and Class “A” Fermented Malt 

Beverage license application filed by Kelley Williamson Company d/b/a Kelley’s Market, 350 N Edwards 
Blvd, Suzanne Dorsey-Sterling, Agent 

 
f. Discussion/Action regarding an Original Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage license and “Class C” Wine 

license application filed by The Candle Mercantile LLC d/b/a The Candle Mercantile, 870 W Main St, 
Elizabeth Doyle, Agent 

 
g. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R52 amending the City of Lake Geneva Fee Schedule Paramedic 

Intercept Fees 
 

h. Discussion/Acceptance regarding June 2019 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee Payment 
Approval Report  

 
12. Recommendation of the Plan Commission of June 17, 2019- Ald Skates 

 
a. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R46 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit filed by 

Tristan Crist, 100 Skyline Dr., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to allow for a Commercial Outdoor Entertainment 
land use for the patio area to include all affirmative findings of fact, and staff recommendations, and that 
amplified music not be allowed and that outdoor entertainment shall cease one hour after the commencement 
of the last show of the evening. The property is located at 100 N Edwards Blvd., located within the Planned 
Business (PB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZA196100004 
 

b. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R47 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit filed by 
Elizabeth Tumas, 1142 Cypress Point, Twin Lakes, WI 53181 for the property located at 617 W. Main St to 
allow outdoor music this request is for a Commercial Outdoor Entertainment land use, located in the Central 
Business (CB) zoning district. Tax Key No. ZOP00291 

 
c. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R48 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

filed by Tom and Denise Pecora, 911 Mason Ln., Lake in the Hills, IL 60156, for the installation of 90’ long 6’ 
wide pier and one boat slip located at1550 Lake Shore Dr., within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning 
district, Tax Key No. ZLM00048 

 
d. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R49 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

filed by SCH Lake LLC, 131 Dearborne St., Chicago, IL 60603 for the installation of 100’ long 8’ wide pier 
and two boat slip located at 700 S. Lake Shore Dr., within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, 
Tax Key No. ZBB00007A 

 



June 24, 2019City Council Agenda   Page 3 of 3 

e. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R50 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
filed by Samantha Strenger, 615 Center St., Lake Geneva WI, 53147 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging 
at 695 Wells Street, located in the Planned Business District (PB) zoning, Tax Key No. ZOP00399C 

 
f. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R51 authorizing the issuance of a Precise Implementation Plan 

(PIP) filed by Brian Dalton, 353 S. Lake St., Grayslake, IL 60030, to allow Commercial Indoor Lodging at 406 
Wells St. The property is located at 406 Wells St., situated in Neighborhood Business (NB) zoning district Tax 
Key No. ZOP00353 

 
13. Discussion/Action regarding City of Lake Geneva Mayor and Common Council Letter of Support for the 

Geneva Lake Shore Path as a “Great Place in Wisconsin” to be submitted by City Planner Mike Slavney 
 

14. Mayoral Appointments 
a. Discussion/Action regarding Mayoral Appointment of Chuck Saul to the City of Lake Geneva Police & Fire 

Commission with a term to expire May 1, 2024 
  

b. Discussion/Action regarding Mayoral Appointment of Sarah McConnell to the Avian Committee with a term 
to expire May 1, 2021 

 
15. Adjournment 

 
Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance to participate in this meeting or hearing, should be made to the City 

Clerk’s office in advance so the appropriate accommodations can be made. 

 



 
 

120 East Lakeside Street • Madison, Wisconsin 53715 • 608.255.3988 • 608.255.0814 Fax  

342 North Water Street • Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202  • 414.421.2001 • 414.732.2035 Fax  

www.vandewalle.com 

 

Shaping places, shaping change  

To: City of Lake Geneva 

From: Mike Slavney, FAICP, City Planner 

Date: 10 June 2019 

Re: Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process 

The City adopted the Comprehensive Plan on December 14, 2009. To provide a manageable, 
predictable, and cost-effective process, the City has established a plan amendment cycle every year. 
This will be done in conjunction with the 2019 Comprehensive Plan Update currently underway.  
 
Several Wisconsin communities use an annual plan review and amendment process cycle to ensure 
these evaluations and adjustments are handled in a predictable and efficient manner.  
 
The procedures to adopt or amend a Plan are defined under Section 66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes.  
The City process needs to follow these requirements. The timeline on the following page presents a 
conceptual process to allow for plan amendment requests, consider amendments, and go through 
the remaining Plan Update and adoption procedures in compliance with the State Statutes. The 
Comprehensive Plan Update will be adopted by the end of 2019.  

This approach features a combined meeting of the Plan Commission and Common Council.   

During the meeting: 

1. the Common Council holds a Public Hearing on the requested Plan amendments; 

2. the Plan Commission considers Plan amendment requests and public testimony, and then 
adopts a resolution making a specific recommendation on each of the requested Plan 
amendments to the Common Council; and, 

3. the Common Council considers the Plan Commission’s recommendations, vote on motions 
for each requested Plan amendment, and finally, adopts an ordinance to officially adopt the  
Plan amendments per their individually voted motions. 

 
This combined meeting approach allows for the Plan Commission and Council to hear the same 
public testimony, prior to the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and the Council’s actions. 
 

  

http://www.vandewalle.com/


10 June 2019  Page 2 

Ten-Year Comprehensive Plan Update Timeline 
 Incorporating the Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process  

Items shaded in grey are related to the Annual Comprehensive Plan  
Amendment Process. Dates subject to change. 

 

 
 

 

Task Description Date

P Kickoff Meeting with City Staff  January 21

P Project Kickoff with Plan Commission and City Council April 8

P Stakeholder Interviews & Focus Groups May 14

P Community Vision Workshop #1 May 15

P Adopt Public Participation Plan May 27

Plan Commission Meeting to Open Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment Process
June 17

City Clerk Accepts Plan Amendment Nominations  June 18-July 31

Additional Public Outreach mid July

Plan Commission Meeting to Review Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment Nominations  
August 19

Plan Commission Meeting to Review Draft #1 of 

Comprehensive Plan Update and Continue Review of 

Amendment Nominations  

September 16

Approved Amendments Incorporated into Draft 

Comprehensive Plan
September 17-30

Draft Comprehensive Plan Open House October

Plan Commission Recommends Setting Public Hearing October

Council Sets Public Hearing (approx. 6 weeks ahead) October

City Clerk Distributes Draft Plan to Surrounding 

Jurisdictions
October

30-Day Review Period ~ November 1-30

Committee of the Whole Review of Draft Plan December 2

Joint City Council and Plan Commission Public Hearing and 

Adoption of Comprehensive Plan
December 9

City Clerk Distributes Adopted Comprehensive Plan to 

Surrounding Jurisdictions
After Adoption



 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application Form Page 1 of 2 

 

City of Lake Geneva  
 Amendment to the Comprehensive Plan 

APPLICATION FORM 

 
PETITION:    I, __________________________________________ hereby petition the City of Lake 
Geneva consider the following request for amendment to the Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan:  
 
Please check those that apply: 

________     Future Land Use Map (Map 5) 

________ Other Maps (Transportation Facilities Map, etc.) 

________ Text Amendment (policies, programs, etc.) 

________ Other 

 
Name of Applicant: 
Person(s) or Firm 

 

Address:  

Daytime Telephone:  

Email or Fax:  

Property Owner Name and 
Address:  
If different from applicant 

 

Description of Property, Parcel 
Number, or Street Address: 
If request is related to a particular 
property 

 
 
 
 
 

Summary of the Proposed 
Amendment Request: 
Please describe here (or on a 
separate sheet) your specific 
request for a Comprehensive Plan 
amendment. Provide any necessary 
maps or supporting data as 
needed, including conceptual 
development plans, if applicable.  

 

Present Zoning: 
If applicable 

 

Future Proposed Use: 
Attach additional pages and/or 
concept plan as appropriate. 

 



 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application Form Page 2 of 2 

 

The Lake Geneva Plan Commission will consider the following criteria when making 
recommendations regarding amendments to the Comprehensive Plan. Please respond to the 
following questions:  
 
If additional space is needed for your response, please attach additional sheets to this form. 
 

1.  How will the proposed amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan benefit the public, City, and/or 
surrounding neighbors or neighborhoods? 

 
 
 
 
 

2. How does the request advance the goals, objectives 
and policies of the Comprehensive Plan? 
 

 

3.  As it affects the amendment request, what 
circumstances have changed or what new information 
is now available since the 2009 adoption of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, or in the case of a previously 
requested amendment, what circumstances have 
changed since the last amendment request? 
 

 
 
 
 

4.  Is there any additional information that the City of 
Lake Geneva should consider in its evaluation of this 
request? 

 
 
 
 
 

 
The deadline for requests to amend the Comprehensive Plan is Wednesday, July 31, 2019 at 4:00 p.m.  

Requests shall be submitted to City Hall or via email to bzclerk@cityoflakegeneva.com. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________   ________________, 2019 
Signature of Applicant   Date 
 
 



June 10, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 1 of 4 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, JUNE 10, 2019 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Members: Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President, John Halverson, Council Vice President, Cindy Flower,  
Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 
 
 
Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Alderperson Hedlund led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Roll Call 
Present: Skates, Dunn, Flower, Straube, Halverson, Proksa, Hedlund, and Howell 
Absent: None 
 
Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 
None 
 
Re-consider business from previous meeting 
None 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public hearing 
items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
Bruce Bennett; 384 Stone Ridge Dr; Spoke in favor of Ordinance 19-08 and thinks that it will greatly enhance the 
downtown area. 
 
Kevin Flemming; 1032 Wisconsin St; Spoke in favor of Ordinance 19-08 and asked the Council for their approval as well. 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
Clerk Kropf stated there wasn’t correspondence to acknowledge at this time. 

 
Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of May 28, 2019, as prepared and distributed 
Motion by Flower to approve, second by Dunn. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on June 4, 2019 
Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request 
requires no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 
 
-2019-2020 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet 

 
-Renewal of 2019-2020 “Class A” Intoxicating Liquor & Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License applications 
filed by the following, contingent upon payment of all outstanding liabilities and delinquencies with the City of 
Lake Geneva and wholesaler invoices, and clearance of any Department of Revenue holds: 

1) ALDI Inc Wisconsin d/b/a ALDI #56, 200 N. Edwards Blvd, Lake Geneva, Ryan McDermid, Agent 
2) Cove Condominium Association Inc d/b/a The Cove of Lake Geneva (Gift Shop), 111 Center St, Patrick 

McCarthy, Agent 
3) Kwik Trip Inc d/b/a Kwik Trip #219, 710 Williams St, Stephen Abel, Agent 
4) Maya Geneva Inc d/b/a Maya Geneva Inc, 605 Williams St, Wayne Schwartz, Agent 
5) Midwest Fuel Inc d/b/a Northside Mobil, 501 Interchange North, John Consolino, Agent 
6) Walgreen Co. d/b/a Walgreens #05600, 351 Edwards Blvd, Suzanne Tiedke, Agent 
7) Quick and Save LLC d/b/a Quick and Save, 1231 Grant St, Pradip Patel, Agent 
8) Stinebrinks Lake Geneva Foods LLC d/b/a Stinebrink’s Piggly Wiggly, 100 East Geneva Sq, Mark 

Stinebrink, Agent 
9) Walmart Stores INC d/b/a Walmart Store #910, 201 S Edwards Blvd, Rebecca Edwards, Agent 
10) Target Corp d/b/a Target Store T2348, 660 N Edwards Blvd, Katherine Johnson, Agent 

 



June 10, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 2 of 4 

11) StopNGo of Madison INC d/b/a StopNGo Store # 265, 896 Wells St, Andrew Bowman, Agent 
12) New World Wine Shop INC d/b/a New World Wine Shop, 830 W Main St Suite G, Jerry Sibbing, Agent 

13) Prairie State Enterprises of Darien LLC d/b/a Lake Geneva Mobil, 350 N Edwards Blvd, Kenneth Kearns, 
Agent 

14) Queso LLC d/b/a The Cheese Box, 801 S Wells St, Zbigniew Boroweic, Agent 
15) Brutap LLC d/b/a Bruno’s Liquors, 524 Broad St, James Sharkus, Agent 

 
-Renewal of 2019-2020 “Class A” Intoxicating Liquor License application filed by the following, contingent upon 
payment of all outstanding liabilities and delinquencies with the City of Lake Geneva and wholesaler invoices, and 
clearance of any Department of Revenue holds: 

1) Lake Geneva School of Cooking LLC d/b/a Lake Geneva School of Cooking, 727 Geneva St, John 
Bogan, Agent 

2) Lake-Ben INC d/b/a Cornerstone Shop & Gallery, 214 Broad St, Karin Bennett, Agent 
 

-Renewal of 2019-2020 “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor & Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License (Hotel 
Exemption) application filed by the following, contingent upon payment of all outstanding liabilities and 
delinquencies with the City of Lake Geneva and wholesaler invoices, and clearance of any Department of Revenue 
holds 

1) Cove Condominium Association Inc d/b/a The Cove of Lake Geneva, 111 Center St, Patrick McCarthy, 
Agent 

2) Harbor Shores Hotel Management INC d/b/a Harbor Shores on Lake Geneva, 300 Wrigley Dr, William 
Strangeway, Agent 

 
-Renewal of 2019-2020 Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage & “Class C” Wine License applications filed by the 
following, contingent upon payment of all outstanding liabilities and delinquencies with the City of Lake Geneva 
and wholesaler invoices, and clearance of any Department of Revenue holds: 

1) Beachside Hospitality Inc d/b/a Barrique Wine & Brew Bar, 835 Wrigley Dr, Nancy Trilla, Agent 
2) Simple Café LLC d/b/a Simple Café, 525 Broad St, Thomas Hartz, Agent 
3) Plaza Media LLC d/b/a Geneva Theater, 244 Broad St, Shad Branen, Agent 
4) Martins Olympic Restaurant LLC d/b/a Olympic Restaurant, 748 Main St, Yolanda Zavaleta, Agent 
5) Happy Restaurant INC d/b/a Happy Café, 526 Wells St, Min Ting Zhong, Agent 
6) Breakfast Bungalow LLC d/b/a Great Eggs, 220 Cook St #101, Justin Ochlek, Agent 
7) D & D Restaurant Group INC d/b/a Flat Iron Tap, 150 Center St, John Sherman Lindsey, Agent 
8) Sabai Sabai Thai Cuisine, INC d/b/a Sabai Sabai Thai Cuisine, 306 Center St, Jirapa Cox, Agent 
9) DCRB Inc d/b/a Avant Cycle Café, 234 Broad St, Andrew Gruber, Agent 
10) Mama Cimino’s LLC d/b/a Mama Cimino’s, 131 S Wells St, John Bobak, Agent 
11) EYM Pizza of Wisconsin LLC d/b/a Pizza Hut, 801 Williams St, John Dethloff, Agent 
12) Ovalle-Perez LLC d/b/a Taqueria el Gallo de Oro, 820 Williams St, Cynthia Perez, Agent 

 
-Renewal of 2019-2020 Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License application filed by the following, contingent 
upon payment of all outstanding liabilities and delinquencies with the City of Lake Geneva and wholesaler 
invoices, and clearance of any Department of Revenue holds 

1) KNMG Hotels LLC d/b/a Comfort Suites, 300 E Main St, Eric Schmitt, Agent 
2) B & B Lake Geneva LLC d/b/a Board & Brush Lake Geneva, 262 Center St, Julie Selby, Agent 

 
-Renewal of 2019-2020 “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor & Class “B”  Fermented Malt Beverage License applications 
filed by the following, contingent upon payment of all outstanding liabilities and delinquencies with the City of 
Lake Geneva and wholesaler invoices, and clearance of any Department of Revenue holds: 

1) American Legion Post 24 d/b/a American Legion, 735 Henry St, Charles Schlehlein, Agent 
2) Harry’s Café & Place Inc d/b/a Harry’s Café, 808 Main St, James Chironis, Agent 
3) Medusa Grill & Bistro LLC d/b/a Medusa Grill & Bistro, 501 Broad St, Gregory Anagnos, Agent 
4) Popeye’s Galley & Grog LTD d/b/a Popeye’s on Lake Geneva, 811 Wrigley Dr, Veronica Anagnos, 

Agent 
5) Gleneagles LLC d/b/a Sopra, 724 W Main St, Alastair Cumming, Agent 
6) Capitol Geneva LLC d/b/a Sprecher’s Restaurant & Pub, 111 Center St, Susan Getgen, Agent 
7) Stone Soup LLC d/b/a Baker House, 327 Wrigley Dr, Roland Wolff, Agent 



June 10, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 3 of 4 

8) Mercedes or Bust LLC d/b/a The Bottle Shop, 617 W Main St, Elizabeth Tumas, Agent 
9) 422 S. Wells St. LTD d/b/a Celebration on Wells, 422 S Wells St, Charles Lorenzi, Agent 
10) L&B Main Street Inc d/b/a Champs Sports Bar & Grill, 747 W Main St, Jessica Bush, Agent 
11) Chubby Kitty LLC d/b/a Fat Cat’s, 104 Broad St, Mark Basil, Agent 
12) Hogs & Kisses Inc d/b/a Hogs & Kisses, 149 Broad St, Linda Chironis, Agent  
13) Sandal Inc d/b/a Lake Geneva Lanes, 192 E Main St, Franklin Guske, Jr, Agent 
14) Geneva Bay Club LLC d/b/a Maxwell Mansion, 421 Baker St, Charles Fritz IV, Agent 
15) DCR Restaurant Group LLC d/b/a Next Door Pub & Pizzeria, 411 Interchange North, Chad Bittner, 

Agent 
16) SS2 Inc d/b/a The Red Geranium Restaurant, 393 N Edwards Blvd, Troy Bartz, Agent 
17) Two Thumbs Up LLC d/b/a Thumbs Up, 260 Broad St, Benjamin Barels, Agent 
18) LG Hospitality Group LLC d/b/a Tuscan Tavern & Grill, 430 Broad St, James Georgalas, Agent 
19) Oakfire LLC d/b/a Oakfire, 831 Wrigley Dr, David Scotney, Agent 

 
-Renewal of 2019-2020 “Class B” Winery License & Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License application filed 
by Jackson Wine LLC d/b/a Studio Winery, 401 Sheridan Springs Rd., Kathleen Jackson, Agent, contingent upon 
payment of all outstanding liabilities and delinquencies with the City of Lake Geneva and wholesaler invoices, and 
clearance of any Department of Revenue holds 

 
-Renewal of 2019-2020 Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor & Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License 
applications filed by the following, contingent upon payment of all outstanding liabilities and delinquencies with 
the City of Lake Geneva and wholesaler invoices, and clearance of any Department of Revenue holds: 

1) Lake Aire LLC d/b/a Lake Aire Restaurant, 804 W Main St, George Argiropoulos, Agent 
2) Harborside Pub & Grill LLC d/b/a Harborside Pub & Grill, 100 Broad St, Spyro Condos, Agent  
3) Su Wings Corp d/b/a Su Wing’s Chinese, 743 North St, Siu Wing Leung, Agent 
4) Bella Vista Suites on the Shores of Lake Geneva, INC d/b/a Bella Vista Suites on the Shores of Lake 

Geneva, 335 Wrigley Dr, Charles Lorenzi, Agent 
 

-Renewal of 2019-2020 Massage Establishment License applications filed by the following: 
1) Element Massage Studio, 647 W Main St 
2) Lake Geneva Massage Therapy, 905 Marshall St 
3) Healing Muscle Therapies, 201 Broad St Suite D 
4) Clear Waters Salon Spa, 734 Main St 
5) Bella Vista Suites and the Lakeview Spa, 335 Wrigley Dr 
6) Therapeutic Touch, 601 W Main St 

 
-Renewal 2019-2020 of Taxi Cab Company License applications filed by the following (Approval contingent upon favorable 
review of Insurance by City Attorney)  

1) Senior Cab, W3099 Krueger Rd  
2) Lakefront Shuttle, 300 Wrigley Dr 

 
Motion by Howell to approve the consent agenda, second by Halverson. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Items Removed from the Consent Agenda 
None 

 
First Reading of Ordinance 19-09 an ordinance amending sub-sub-subsection 1a, Land Use requirement of sub-
subsection (y), Tourist Rooming House, of subsection (8) Accessory Land Uses, of Section 98-206, Detailed Land Use 
descriptions and regulations of Chapter 98: Zoning Ordinance, of the City of Lake Geneva Zoning Ordinance to clarify 
where Tourist Rooming House may be located 
Mayor Hartz offered Ordinance 19-09 as a first reading. 
Motion by Hedlund to suspend the rules and conduct the second reading, second by Skates.  
Mayor Hartz offered Ordinance 19-09 as a second reading. 
Motion by Hedlund to approve, second by Skates.  
Attorney Draper noted that this ordinance is applicable to any dwelling not just single family residences. This change 
would make the City’s ordinance in line with state statute. Motion carried 8-0. 
 



June 10, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 4 of 4 

Second Reading of Ordinance 19-08 an ordinance amending Chapter 62, Streets, Sidewalks and other Public Places, 
Article III, Obstructions and Encroachments, Section 62-67, exceptions, by adding Subsection (9), Sidewalk Furnishings: 
Benches and Planters within Public Rights-Of-Way, allowing certain furnishings within the Public Right-Of-Way 
Mayor Hartz offered Ordinance 19-08 as a second reading. 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Proksa. Hartz noted that the benches and garbage containers will be up against 
the building instead of being out on the “terrace” area of the sidewalk. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
Discussion/Action regarding amending provisions of the City of Lake Geneva ordinance concerning Child Safety Zones 
Attorney Draper reviewed the various Child Safety Zones for various jurisdictions in the surrounding area. He noted that 
the current ordinance is unenforceable and the zone threshold needs to be changed. Draper recommended changing the 
zone from 2,000 feet to 750 feet. He added that the new case law states that it is unconstitutional to limit where people 
may live to the point that they cannot live in the community.  
 
Motion by Skates to direct the attorney to amend the City’s current Child Safety Zone ordinance to 1,000 feet and remove 
other illegal provisions as necessary in the ordinance and refer to the Council for a first reading, second by Hedlund. 
Motion carried 7-1, with Dunn voting no. 
 
Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of June 4, 2019- Ald Howell 

 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R43 authorizing the use of Contingency funds for additional Comprehensive 
Plan workshops and focus groups, in an amount not to exceed $6,716 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. Howell noted that this will pay for the additional workshops to be held 
for the Comprehensive Plan. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R44 updating of City of Lake Geneva Wage Scale for Full-Time Employees 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. Howell noted that this resolution will bring the City’s wage scales up 
to date. Motion carried 8-0. 
  
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R45 updating of City of Lake Geneva Wage Scale for Part-Time Employees 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 

  
Discussion/Action regarding update to City of Lake Geneva Compensation Policy 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Proksa. Finance Director Hall noted that the first item to be changed was section 
VIII (2). This provision stated that an employee would only receive 75% of the percentage of the wage increase based on 
their evaluation. City Administrator Nord then stated that section IX would be changing as well in that the Department 
Head would have the authority to offer a wage within that grade scale with the approval of the City Administrator. Motion 
carried 8-0. 
  
Adjournment 
Motion by Dunn to adjourn, second by Halverson. Motion carried 8-0. The meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 
7:01 p.m. 
 



 
Original License: 
Jill Warner 
Frances Grego 
Tyler Daehn 
Jazmin Lamas 
Claudia Sanchez 
Jason Sullivan 
Bethany Brown 
James Steele 
Rachel  Lech 
Theresa Smith 
 
 
 
Renewal Operator: 
Vikas Dadhwal 
Tyler Daehn 
Christopher Dopke 
Julie Miller Beauchamp 
Michael Carstensen 
Nancy Dvonch 
Michelle Ulanski 
Dianne Watson 
Teresa Schneider 
Howard Koller 
Barbara Soble 
Michael Howard 
John Kobernick 
Catherine Steidinger 
Gerry Bee 
John Gelshenen 
Vikas Dadhwal 
Hannah Schultz 
Cherlyn Steadman 
Gayle Krahn 
Charles Phinisee 
Kimberly Kurowski 
Cindy Gale 
Freda Pryga 
Denise Bader 
Ashley Principato 
Laura Dye 
Jane Andreas 
 
 
 
 











Application for Temporary Class "8" / "Class B" Retailer's License
See Additional lnformation on reverse side. Contact the municipal clerk if you have questions.

FEE $ 10.00 ApplicationDate: 517119

f Town f vittage E city q1 Lake Geneva County e1 Walworth

The named organization applies tor:. (check appropriate box(es).)

E A Temporary Class'B' license to sell fermented malt beverages at picnics or similar gatherings under s. 125.26(6),'Wis. Stats.

I A Temporary'Class B" Iicense to sell wine at picnics or similarr gatherings under s. 125.51(10), Wis. Stats.

at the premises described below during a special event beginnin g OC* fttUolq and ending -9p]9]?l))!4 - ano agrees
to comply with all laws, resolutions, ordinances and regulations (state, federal or local) affecting the sale of fermented marlt beverages
and/or wine if the license is granted.

1. Organization (check appropriate box) ) E Bona fide Club n church

I Chamber of Commerce or similar Civic or Trade Organization

f Veteran's Organization E f"i, Association
Name Lake Geneva Rotary Club

fl Lodge/Society

(a)

(b) Address P.O. Box 601

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(Street) n Town f] vittase E city

Date organized 1979
lf corporation, give date of incorporation

lf the named organization is not required to hold a Wisconsin seller's permit pursuant to s. 77.54 (7m), Wis. Statr;., check this
box: I
Names and addresses of all officers:
President MarthaThelen
Vice President .lohn Stensland
Secretary

Treasurer

(g) Name and address of manager or person in charge of affair: Bridqet Leech - Lake Geneva Business lmprovement District

P.O. Box 863 Lake Geneva. Wl 53147

2. Location of Premises Where Beer and/or Wine Will Be Sold, Served, Consumed, or Stored, and Areas Wher e Alcohrol
Beverage Records Will be Stored:
(a) Street number Beer tent will be set on the street between 727 Geneva St. and 726 Geneva St.

(b) Lot Block Geneva Street, near the intersection to Broad St.

(c) Do premises occupy all or part of building?

(d) lf part of building, describe fully all premises covered under this application, which floor or floors, or room or roonns, license is
to cover:

3. Name of Event
(a) List name of the event Lake Geneva Oktoherfest
(b) Dates of event Saturday, October 12 and Sunday October 131 2019

DECLARAT!ON
The Officer(s) of the organization, individually and together, declare under,
tion is true and correct to the best of their knowledge and belief.

Officer
(Slgneture/dete)

Officer --6EiAiA@--

Date Filed with Clerk vfn0fl l,Zblq
J

Date Granted by Colncil

L
Offcer-

--l5[i,latu tcia atei---

Date Reported to Council or Board

(Signature/date)

AT-3r5 (R. 11-15)

Receipt #

License No.

Wisconsin Departmenl of Revenue



SUPPLEMENTAL APPLICATION FORM
TEMPORARY CLASS "8" / "CLASS B" RETAILER'S LICENSE

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA

This form needs to be submitted as an attachment to the Application for Temporary
C/ass "8" / "Class B" Retailer's License Form (Form AT-315) and returned to the City
Clerk.

Applicant Organization: Lake Geneva Rotary Club

Name of Event: Lake Geneva Oktoberfest

Date Of Event Saturday, October 12 and Sunday October 13,2019

Time of Event: 11:00am - 5:00pm both days
(Beginning)

Bridget Leech

(Ending)

Event Contact Person:

Contact Phone: 262-395-8128

Contact Email: bridget@streetsoflakegeneva.com

Will a Licensed Operator be serving or supervising the service of alcohol?
*This includes Temporary Operator's who have completed the

Responsible Beverage Servers class.

GI Yes fl No

PLEASE FILL ALL BLANKS COMPLETELY.
THIS INFORMATION IS NEEDED TO COMPLETELY PROCESS YOUR

TEMPORARY RETAILER'S LICENSE APPLICATION.

TotalAmount:

Forwarded to Police

Recommendation: Deniedl

Verification that not more than 2
within the last 12 months:

wine licenses have been issued to this applicant

FLR Approval: License lssued:
Council Approval: License Number:

License Expires:
MAILTO: Organization

tc. ao

Supplemental Form: Temporary Retailer's Application Revision Date:3/2015

For OfficeUse

Date Filed: 5 Receipt No:



Ordinance 19-10   Page 1 of 3 
 

 

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

An ordinance amending subsections (a) and (c ) of Section 50-202, Residency near Child Safety Zones, and 
Repealing Subsection (d) of Section 50-202, Residency near Child Safety Zones, Section 50-203, Loitering, and 
Section 50-204, Exceptions to Loitering of Article IV, Child Safety Zones of Chapter 50, Offenses and 
Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Municipal Code of the City of Lake Geneva, Relating to amending the 
distance for Child Safety Zones within the City of Lake Geneva, Prohibitions against residency by sexually 
violent criminals, and loitering near child safety zones 

 
Committee 

 
N/A 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19-10 First Reading :   
Second Reading : 

June 24, 2019 
July 8, 2019 

 
The City of Lake Geneva Common Council does ordain as follows: 
 

 
1. That Subsection (a) of Section 50-202, “Residency Near Child Safety Zones,” of Article IV, Child 

Safety Zones, of Chapter 50, OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS of the City of the 
Municipal Code of the City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
Sec. 50-202. Residency Near Child Safety Zones. 
 

(a) A Child Safety Zone is hereby created in the following locations, and an offender shall not reside within 
two thousand one thousand (2000 1000) feet of real property that supports or upon which there exists 
any of the following uses: 

 
1. Any facility for children; 
2. A public park, parkway, parkland, park facility; 
3. A public swimming pool;  
4. A public library; 
5. A public beach; 
5. A recreational trail; 
6. A public playground; 
7. A school for children; 
8. Athletic fields used by children;  
9. A daycare center; 
10. Venetian Festival held annually in August of each year and sponsored by the Lake Geneva 

Jaycees. 
11. Any specialized school for children, including, but not limited to, a gymnastics academy, dance 

academy or music school; or 
12. Aquatic facilities open to the public. 

 
 

 



Ordinance 19-10   Page 2 of 3 
 

2. That Subsection (c), Residency restriction exceptions of Section 50-202, “Residency Near Child 
Safety Zones,” of Article IV, Child Safety Zones, of Chapter 50, OFFENSES AND 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS of the Municipal Code of the City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

(c) Residency Restriction Exceptions. An offender residing within Two Thousand One Thousand (2,000 
1000) feet of real property that supports or upon which there exists any of the uses enumerated in 
subsection (a) of this section does not commit a violation of this chapter if any of the following apply: 

 
1. The offender is required to serve a sentence or is otherwise involuntarily required to reside in a jail, 

prison, juvenile facility, or other correctional institution or mental facility. 
 

2. The offender has established a residence prior to the effective date of the ordinance codified in this 
chapter. 

 
3. The use enumerated in subsection (a) of this section began after the offender established a 

residence. 
 

4. The offender is a minor or ward under guardianship.   
 

3.  That Subsection (d) of Section 50-202, “Residency Near Child Safety Zones,” of Article IV, Child 
Safety Zones, of Chapter 50, OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS of the Municipal 
Code of the City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin is hereby repealed: 

                                                                                                                    
(d) In addition to and notwithstanding the foregoing, but subject to subsection (c) of this section, no 

offender, who has been convicted of a sexually violent offense and/or crime against children, shall be 
permitted to reside in the City of Lake Geneva and no supervised release of such Wisconsin Statute 
Chapter 980 sexually violent person shall be established in the city of Lake Geneva unless such 
offender was domiciled in the city of Lake Geneva at the time of the offense resulting in the offender's 
most recent conviction for committing the sexually violent offense and/or crime against children.  
 

4. That Subsection (d) of Section 50-203, Loitering of Article IV, Child Safety Zones, of Chapter 50, 
OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS of the Municipal Code of the City of Lake 
Geneva, Wisconsin is hereby repealed: 

 
 

Sec. 50-203. Loitering. 
 
(a) It is unlawful for any person defined as an offender pursuant to Section 50-201 to loiter or prowl in the 

locations enumerated in Section 50-202(a) in a place, at a time, or a manner not usual for law-abiding 
individuals under circumstances that warrant alarm for the safety of persons or property in the vicinity. 
 

(b) Among the circumstances which may be considered in determining whether such alarm is warranted is 
the fact that the actor takes flight upon appearance of a peace officer, refuses to identify 
himself/herself or manifestly endeavors to conceal himself/herself or any object. Unless flight by the 
actor or other circumstances make it impracticable, a peace officer shall prior to any arrest for an 
offense under this section, afford the actor an opportunity to dispel any alarm which would otherwise 
be warranted, by requesting him/her to identify himself/herself and explain his/her presence and 
conduct at the locations enumerated in Section 50-202(a). No person shall be convicted of an offense 
under this section if the peace officer did not comply with the preceding sentence, or if it appears at 



Ordinance 19-10   Page 3 of 3 
 

trial that the explanation given by the actor was true and, if believed by the peace officer at the time, 
would have dispelled the alarm.  
 

5. That Section 50-203, Exceptions to Loitering of Article IV, Child Safety Zones, of Chapter 50, 
OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS of the Municipal Code of the City of Lake 
Geneva, Wisconsin is hereby repealed: 

 
Sec. 50-204. Exceptions to Loitering. 
 
The previous section shall not apply where the actor was accompanied by his/her parent, guardian or other 
adult person having his/her care, custody or control, or where that actor was exercising first amendment 
rights protected by the United States Constitution or Wisconsin Constitution, including freedom of speech, 
the free exercise of religion and the right of assembly. 
 

6. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage by a majority vote of the members-elect of the Common 
Council and publication/posting as required by law. 

 
Approved by the City of Lake Geneva Common Council on this 8th July, 2019. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
  Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 

 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                    Date 

 
 
 
 
 



Item No. Item Description Unit Bid Qty.  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $

204.0100 Removing Pavement (Concrete Driveway) SY 5  $             8.50  $                    42.50  $                40.00  $                  200.00  $                40.00  $                200.00  $                    105.00  $                525.00 

204.0120
Removing Asphaltic Surface Milling (Partial 
Depth 2") SY 42355  $             1.88  $             79,627.40  $                  2.41  $           102,075.55  $                  2.36  $           99,957.80  $                        1.55  $           65,650.25 

204.0120
Removing Asphaltic Surface Milling (Partial 
Depth 3") SY 2414  $             1.95  $               4,707.30  $                  2.49  $               6,010.86  $                  3.41  $             8,231.74  $                        1.75  $             4,224.50 

204.0150 Removing Curb & Gutter (ADA Ramps) LF 1002  $             9.75  $               9,769.50  $                11.00  $             11,022.00  $                13.61  $           13,637.22  $                      10.00  $           10,020.00 

204.0150
Removing Curb & Gutter (Exhibit "A" 
Streets) LF 1630  $             9.75  $             15,892.50  $                19.00  $             30,970.00  $                  9.00  $           14,670.00  $                        9.50  $           15,485.00 

205.0100 Excavation Common CY 100  $             9.00  $                  900.00  $                31.90  $               3,190.00  $                31.90  $             3,190.00  $                      35.00  $             3,500.00 
205.0155 Removing Concrete Sidewalk SY 676  $             9.00  $               6,084.00  $                17.20  $             11,627.20  $                17.20  $           11,627.20  $                      28.50  $           19,266.00 
305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch Ton 317  $           24.75  $               7,845.75  $                23.50  $               7,449.50  $                23.50  $             7,449.50  $                      25.25  $             8,004.25 
416.0160 Concrete Driveway 6-inch SY 5  $           63.00  $                  315.00  $                93.00  $                  465.00  $                93.00  $                465.00  $                      66.00  $                330.00 

460.5224

HMA Pavement Type 4 LT 58-28 S 
(460.5224), Item also includes asphaltic 
material PG 58-28 (455.0220) and asphaltic 
material for tack coat (455.0605). Includes 
shouldering and restoration. Ton 5287  $           77.00  $           407,099.00  $                72.45  $           383,043.15  $                66.49  $         351,532.63  $                      74.75  $         395,203.25 

601.0110
Concrete Curb & Gutter 24-Inch Type D 
(ADA Ramps) LF 86  $           48.00  $               4,128.00  $                37.00  $               3,182.00  $                37.00  $             3,182.00  $                      44.00  $             3,784.00 

601.0110
Concrete Curb & Gutter 24-Inch Type D 
(Exhibit "A" Streets) LF 1120  $           36.00  $             40,320.00  $                37.00  $             41,440.00  $                37.00  $           41,440.00  $                      44.00  $           49,280.00 

601.0411
Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-Inch Type D 
(ADA Ramps) LF 916  $           38.00  $             34,808.00  $                37.00  $             33,892.00  $                37.00  $           33,892.00  $                      46.00  $           42,136.00 

601.0411
Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-Inch Type D 
(Exhibit "A" Streets) LF 630  $           38.00  $             23,940.00  $                37.00  $             23,310.00  $                37.00  $           23,310.00  $                      46.00  $           28,980.00 

602.0405 Concrete Sidewalk 4-Inch LF 6022  $             7.45  $             44,863.90  $                  6.95  $             41,852.90  $                  6.95  $           41,852.90  $                        7.75  $           46,670.50 

602.0505 Curb Ramp Detectable Warning Field Yellow SF 560  $           35.00  $             19,600.00  $                60.00  $             33,600.00  $                60.00  $           33,600.00  $                      36.50  $           20,440.00 

611.8110 Adjusting Manholes Covers (Undistributed) EACH 54  $         386.00  $             20,844.00  $              700.00  $             37,800.00  $              131.18  $             7,083.72  $                    350.00  $           18,900.00 

611.8110
Adjusting Manholes Covers-Steel Rings 
(Undistributed) EACH 20  $         250.00  $               5,000.00  $              200.00  $               4,000.00  $              207.70  $             4,154.00  $                    250.00  $             5,000.00 

611.8115 Adjusting Inlet Covers EACH 4  $         375.00  $               1,500.00  $              500.00  $               2,000.00  $              900.00  $             3,600.00  $                    350.00  $             1,400.00 
628.7010 Inlet Protection Type B EACH 5  $           45.00  $                  225.00  $                80.00  $                  400.00  $                45.00  $                225.00  $                      75.00  $                375.00 
628.7015 Inlet Protection Type C EACH 62  $           50.00  $               3,100.00  $              100.00  $               6,200.00  $                55.00  $             3,410.00  $                      75.00  $             4,650.00 
646.6120 Marking Stop Line Epoxy 18-inch LF 270  $           16.00  $               4,320.00  $                16.00  $               4,320.00  $                16.00  $             4,320.00  $                            -    $                       -   
646.7420 Marking Crosswalk Epoxy 6-inch LF 1290  $           13.00  $             16,770.00  $                13.00  $             16,770.00  $                13.00  $           16,770.00  $                            -    $                       -   

SPV.0060.01 Adjusting Valve Boxes (Undistributed) EACH 30  $         250.00  $               7,500.00  $              100.00  $               3,000.00  $                32.80  $                984.00  $                    155.00  $             4,650.00 

SPV.0105.01 Traffic Control LS 1  $    13,700.00  $             13,700.00  $         20,000.00  $             20,000.00  $         41,950.37  $           41,950.37  $               40,645.00  $           40,645.00 

SPV.0180.01

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes Topsoil 
(625.0100), Fertilizer Type A (629.0205), 
Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140). SY 200.0  $           22.00  $               4,400.00  $                45.00  $               9,000.00  $                30.45  $             6,090.00  $                      25.00  $             5,000.00 

Item No. Item Description Unit Bid Qty.  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $

204.0150 Removing Curb & Gutter LF 75  $             9.75  $                  731.25  $                  9.00  $                  675.00  $                  9.00  $                675.00  $                      12.00  $                900.00 
205.0100 Excavation Common CY 25  $             9.00  $                  225.00  $                31.90  $                  797.50  $                31.90  $                797.50  $                      35.00  $                875.00 
305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch Ton 30  $           18.75  $                  562.50  $                23.50  $                  705.00  $                23.50  $                705.00  $                      30.00  $                900.00 
416.0160 Concrete Driveway 6-inch SY 50  $           63.00  $               3,150.00  $                93.00  $               4,650.00  $                93.00  $             4,650.00  $                      76.55  $             3,827.50 

460.5224

HMA Pavement Type 4 LT 58-28 S 
(460.5224), Item also includes asphaltic 
material PG 58-28 (455.0220) and asphaltic 
material for tack coat (455.0605). Includes 
shouldering and restoration Ton 5  $         250.00  $               1,250.00  $              180.00  $                  900.00  $              429.08  $             2,145.40  $                    138.00  $                690.00 

601.0411 Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-Inch Type D LF 40  $           66.00  $               2,640.00  $                37.00  $               1,480.00  $                37.00  $             1,480.00  $                      56.50  $             2,260.00 
601.0411 Concrete Curb & Gutter 18-Inch Type D LF 35  $           68.00  $               2,380.00  $                37.00  $               1,295.00  $                37.00  $             1,295.00  $                      56.50  $             1,977.50 
601.0600 Concrete Curb Pedestrian LF 164  $           45.00  $               7,380.00  $                37.00  $               6,068.00  $                37.00  $             6,068.00  $                      56.50  $             9,266.00 

SPV.0105.01 Traffic Control LS 1  $      1,050.00  $               1,050.00  $           1,000.00  $               1,000.00  $              809.98  $                809.98  $                 1,325.00  $             1,325.00 

SPV.0180.01

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes Topsoil 
(625.0100), Fertilizer Type A (629.0205), 
Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140). SY 20  $           45.00  $                  900.00  $                50.00  $               1,000.00  $                30.45  $                609.00  $                      45.00  $                900.00 

Item No. Item Description Unit Bid Qty.  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $

204.0100 Removing Pavement (Concrete Driveway) SY 25  $             8.25  $                  206.25  $                40.00  $               1,000.00  $                40.00  $             1,000.00  $                      55.00  $             1,375.00 

204.0120
Removing Asphaltic Surface Milling (Partial 
Depth 3") SY 720  $             1.95  $               1,404.00  $                  2.75  $               1,980.00  $                  4.79  $             3,448.80  $                        5.25  $             3,780.00 

204.0150 Removing Curb & Gutter LF 27  $             9.75  $                  263.25  $                  9.00  $                  243.00  $                  9.00  $                243.00  $                      18.50  $                499.50 
205.0100 Excavation Common CY 30  $             9.00  $                  270.00  $                31.90  $                  957.00  $                31.90  $                957.00  $                      50.00  $             1,500.00 
305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch Ton 15  $           18.75  $                  281.25  $                23.50  $                  352.50  $                23.50  $                352.50  $                      50.00  $                750.00 
416.0160 Concrete Driveway 6-Inch SY 20  $           72.00  $               1,440.00  $                93.00  $               1,860.00  $                93.00  $             1,860.00  $                      84.50  $             1,690.00 

460.5224

HMA Pavement Type 4 LT 58-28 S 
(460.5224), Item also includes asphaltic 
material PG 58-28 (455.0220) and asphaltic 
material for tack coat (455.0605). Includes 
shouldering and restoration Ton 126  $           85.00  $             10,710.00  $                95.00  $             11,970.00  $                70.49  $             8,881.74  $                    118.00  $           14,868.00 

601.0411 Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-inch Type D LF 27  $           50.00  $               1,350.00  $                37.00  $                  999.00  $                37.00  $                999.00  $                      62.00  $             1,674.00 

SPV.0105.01 Traffic Control LS 1  $         800.00  $                  800.00  $           4,000.00  $               4,000.00  $              555.12  $                555.12  $                    850.00  $                850.00 

SPV.0180.01

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes Topsoil 
(625.0100), Fertilizer Type A (629.0205), 
Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140). SY 20  $           45.00  $                  900.00  $                45.00  $                  900.00  $                30.45  $                609.00  $                      40.00  $                800.00 

Bidder #2 - Asphalt Contractors

 $                           836,820.16 

 $                             18,570.50 

2019 Street Improvement Program - BASE BID: Bidder #1 - Wolf Paving Corp.

SUBTOTAL BASE BID  $                      777,301.85 

Park N Ride - MANDATORY ADDITIONAL BID 1:

          Kapur & Associates,  Inc.               

2019 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - General Bid Tab
City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin

Bid Opening: May 30, 2019 10:00 AM

Clover-Maxwell Alley - MANDATORY ADDITIONAL BID 2:

SUBTOTAL - CLOVER-MAXWELL ALLEY  $                        17,624.75 

SUBTOTAL - PARK N RIDE ADDITIONAL BID  $                        20,268.75  $                           19,234.88  $                               22,921.00 

Bidder #3 - Payne & Dolan Bidder #4 - Stark Pavement Corp.

 $                         776,825.08  $                             794,118.75 

 $                           18,906.16  $                               27,786.50 

 $                         814,966.12  $                             844,826.25 TOTAL  $                      815,195.35  $                           879,652.16 

 $                             24,261.50 













































City of Lake Geneva
2017-2019 Capital Projects

Council
Dept./Projects Year Amount Notes Approved
City Hall
Parking lot landscaping 2017 5,000           6 5,000          
City Hall Office Changes 2017 15,000          

Fire Department
Wall Hydrant Repair 2017 7,000           4,6 7,000          
Bay light switches 2017 4,165           4,6 4,165          

Parks
2017 Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan 2017 25,000          3
White River Bridges 2017 55,000          1
Manning Way Playground 2017 40,000         2,3,5,6 40,000        
White River Crossing 2017 300,000        
Visitor Center Restrooms 2017 110,000       3,5,6 110,000      
Center Street Park 2017 20,000          

Police Department
Second ALPR 2017 21,500         4,6 21,500        
Carpet Replacement 2018 2,000            
Garage Floor Seal 2018 6,000            

Streets
Shop Generator 2017 10,000         5,6 10,000        
Capital Road Projects 2017 750,000       5,6 750,000      
Street Crack-filling 2017 30,000         5,6 30,000        
Storm Sewer Line Repairs 2017 25,000         5,6 25,000        
Capital Road Projects 2018 750,000        
Street Crack-filling 2018 30,000          
Storm Sewer Line Repairs 2018 25,000          
Exhaust system/lighting 1055 Carey St.      2018 20,000          
Capital Road Projects 2019 750,000        
Street Crack-filling 2019 30,000          
Storm Sewer Line Repairs 2019 25,000          
Fencing, brush drop off and lock up area 2019 30,000          

Total 3,085,665    1,002,665  

Notes:
1 - Bridge could be charged to Equipment Replacement Fund
2 - Additional $20,000 from Park Impact Fees
3 - Recommended by Park Board
4 - Recommended by Police & Fire Commission
5 - Recommended by Public Works Committee
6 - Recommended by Finance, License, & Regulation Committee

Additional Items from Lakefront Fund
   Beach Wall ?
   Riviera Renovation ?

4/21/2017































































 1 

    

 SCHEDULE OF FEES  
   CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN 

 
The City of Lake Geneva may retain overpayments of taxes, fees, licenses, and similar 

charges when the overpayment is $2 or less, unless such refund is specifically requested by the 
remitter. 
 

LICENSES & PERMITS 
ALCOHOL LICENSE FEES * STATUTORY LIMITS  
           Temporary Retailer’s $10.00 Each 
           Provisional/Temp. Operator  (60 days) $15.00 each 
           Operator- 1 Year License (First Time Applicants)  $50.00  

 
           Operator- 2 Year License (Renewal) $75.00 
           Class A Liquor $500.00  
           Class A Beer $100.00 
           Class C Wine $100.00 
           Class B Liquor (Quota License) $500.00 
           Class B Beer $100.00 
           Reserve Class B Liquor $10,000.00 
           Change of Agent $10.00 
           Publication Fee $25.00 

Extension of Premises $25.00 
ANNEXATION FILING FEE – DUE UPON PETITION $200.00 
AMUSEMENTS  
           Coin Operated music machine/juke box $20.00 per machine 
ASSESSMENT REQUEST LETTER              $35.00 each 
BANNER PERMIT $1.00 per banner per day of display 
BUSINESS LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
           Late fee after July 1 $20.00 (in addition to license fee) 
CAT LICENSE  
           Not Spayed/Neutered $8.00 Annual 
              Spayed/Neutered $4.00 Annual 
              Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption    
            of new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 

$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

DOG LICENSE  
           Not Spayed/Unneutered $30.00 Annual 
            Spayed/Neutered $15.00 Annual 
              Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption of  
           new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 

$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

BOWLING ALLEY $20.00 per lane 
BILLIARDS OR POOL TABLE $40.00 per table 
CARRIAGE  COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Carriage $25.00 
CLOSING OUT SALE $25.00 event 

Resolution 19-R52 
The Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva does hereby establish the 

following revised schedule of fees, effective June 24, 2019 



 2 

CIGARETTE/TOBACCO LICENSE * STATUTORY $100.00 Annual 
CREAMERY PERMIT $50.00 
DIRECT SELLERS PERMIT $50.00 nonrefundable application fee 
EVENT PERMIT (PER POLICY)  
      PUBLIC ASSEMBLY PERMIT Non-profit organization: No charge 

For-profit organization: $25 per day 
      BLOCK PARTIES OR GAZEBO USE (1 hour Photo Session in Gazebo in 
Flat Iron Park) 

Non-profit organization: No charge 
For-profit organization: $75 

      TIER 1 EVENT Non-profit organization: No charge 
For-profit organization: $250 

      TIER 2 EVENT Non-profit organization: No charge 
For-profit organization: $500 

MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT  
           Investigation $50.00 Annual 
           Transfer $50.00 
MOBILE HOME PARK LICENSE $100.00 Annual 
PARADE PERMITS $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
BASEBALL TOURNAMENT PERMIT FEE – VETERAN’S PARK $1,000 Security Deposit 
     Friday Rental $150.00 
     Saturday Rental $300.00 
     Sunday Rental $300.00 
PARKING STICKERS  
           Resident & Non-Resident Residence Owners  
           – Lasts 2 years (even)  – 2 hours free parking 

4 free per residence 
each additional $25.00 

           Business Owner 
           – 2 hours free parking 

  $25.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$25.00 for 1 year (effective Jan. 1 2017) 

$50.00 (effective Jan. 1, 2018) 
           Walworth County Resident 
            - 2 hours free parking 

$160.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$80.00 for 1 year 

           Parking Lot Permit $400.00 Annual   
PARKING RATES  
           Parking Stall Rate for stalls on Wrigley Dr.,  
          10 stalls at the boat launch, stalls on lower Center St.  
          south of Main St., stalls on lower Broad St. south of  
          Main St., 700 & 800 blocks of Main St., and Center St. 
          Parking Lot  
          All other Parking Stalls Rate 

$2.00 per hour 
 
 
 
 

$1.00 per hour 
           Parking Meter Bags/Contractor Permits $10.00 administrative fee 

$25.00 deposit per locked bag 
March 1 – Nov 14: $20.00 daily per bag 

Nov 15 – Feb 29: $10.00 daily per bag 
PARKING TICKETS     
           Expired Stall (Over 2 hours; Over 5 hours; Over 25 min.) $20.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles $20.00 
           Improper Use or Display of Sticker $20.00 
           Backed into parking stall $25.00 
           Compact Car Only $25.00 
           No Parking Zone $25.00 
           Over the Line $25.00 



 3 

           Parking by fire hydrant $40.00 
           Handicap Zone $150.00 
           Parking with Trailer or Trailer alone in Sage Lot D $25.00 
           Parking any Vehicle without a Trailer or with an  
           occupied Trailer in Boat Launch Parking Lot F  

$25.00 

LATE FEES     
           Expired Stall After 10 days $40.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles After 10 days $40.00 
           Backed into parking stall After 10 days $50.00 
           Compact Car Only After 10 days $50.00 
           No Parking Zone After 10 days $50.00 
           Parking by fire hydrant $80.00 
           Handicap Zone  $300.00 
           Second Collection Letter Fee $6.00 
           Vehicle Suspension Release Fee $20.00 
  
PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS * STATUTORY  
           Photocopies 
           (can include hourly wage for gathering data) 

$0.25 per page 

RADON TEST KIT $10.00 
REISSUE CHECK FEE $25.00 
RETURNED CHECK FEE (NSF) $30.00 each 
ROOM TAX LICENSE $10.00 Annual 
SHOWS, CIRCUS, CARNIVALS  
           Circus $50.00 per day 
           Tent Show – Day 1 $15.00 
           Tent Show – Each Additional Day $10.00 
           All Other $2.00 per day 
SIDEWALK CAFÉ PERMIT $15.00 per seat Annual 
  
STREET USE PERMIT $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
           Up to two days                         $40.00 
           More than two days $100.00 
TAX EXEMPT REPORT FILING (every other year) $20.00 
              Late Fee $20.00 
TAXI CAB COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Car $25.00 
TAXI CAB DRIVER LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
THEATER LICENSE  
           Up to 1,200 seats $200.00 
           Over 1,200 seats $275.00 
TOURIST ROOMING/SHORT-TERM RENTAL LICENSE $2,000.00 Annual 
TRAPPING PERMIT $25.00 Annual 
CITY HALL MEETING ROOM RENT                $25 per event 

 
 
 

LAKEFRONT 
BEACH  



 4 

(Open Memorial Day thru Labor Day –  
  no glass containers allowed) 
           Children age 6 and under Free 
           Children age 7-12                        $4.00 per day 
           Ages 13 to Adult                         $8.00 per day 
Resident Beach Tags (Maximum 6 per Household) $3.00 per tag 
Seasonal Pass Adult 13 and up                      $70.00 per year 
Seasonal Pass Child 7-12               $40.00 per year 
     Beach Bathrooms – Opening/Cleaning Hourly Rate 
BOAT LAUNCH PERMIT  
     One-Time Launch Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $7.00 $8.00 
           Less than 20 feet $10.00 $11.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $14.00 $21.00 
           26 feet and over $16.00 $24.00 
     Season Launch Permit  Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $70.00 $80.00 
           Less than 20 feet $100.00 $110.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $140.00 $210.00 
           26 feet and over $160.00 $240.00 
COMMERCIAL BOAT LAUNCH PERMIT $1,000 per year (unlimited launches) 
ANNUAL WEST END PIER SLIP, LAGOON SLIP, BUOY, DINGHY, 
KAYAK AND PADDLEBOARD RACK LEASE PERMITS  

Rates may change on an annual basis by the 
Common Council 

      WEST-END PIER 24’ SLIP  
             Resident $1,774.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $2,661.00 
             Non-Resident $3,547.00 
      WEST-END PIER 26’ SLIP  
             Resident $2,070.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $3,015.00 
             Non-Resident $3,842.00 
      LAGOON SLIP & BUOY   
             Resident $764.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $1,272.00 
             Non-Resident $1,774.00 
      DINGHY, KAYAK, & PADDLEBOARD RACKS  
             Resident $131.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $191.00 
             Non-Resident $262.00 
BUOY/SLIP RATES ESTABLISHED ANNUALLY BY RESOLUTION  $30.00 per year 
           Season Launch Pass for Kayaks, Canoes and 
           Paddleboards (non-trailer, non-motor) 

 

RIVIERA RENTALS 
           Maximum attendees is 380 

 

           Security Deposit  $1,000.00    
           Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday)    $2,500.00 
           Non-Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday)  

$3,000.00 



 5 

           Resident & Non-Resident Weekday Rental Fee  
          (Monday - Thursday) 

$500.00 

           Not-for-Profit Group Rental Fee $400.00 
           Per Hour Set Up Fee $20.00 per hour 
           Security Guards for Event (2) Additional Renter Expense - Hourly Rate 
           Extra Security Guard over 250 attendees Additional Renter Expense - Hourly Rate 

 

BUILDING & ZONING  

Building Residential $60.00 
Commercial $100.00 

Minimum permit fee for all building permits  

 Residential Construction: $0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Single Family Construction 

$1,000.00 Minimum 
            One & Two family & attached garage (new,  
            addition and alterations) 

 $0.25 / sq. ft. 

            Accessory buildings & garages $0.15 / sq. ft., or $60.00 Minimum 

            Decks  $60.00 

            Roofing and Siding  

Commercial Construction: $0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Commercial Construction 

 $1,500.00 Minimum 
Residences - Apartments, Three family & over, Row Housing, 
Multiple Family Dwellings, Institutional (new, addition and 
alterations) 

$0.30/ sq. ft. 

Local Business, Office Building (new, addition or alteration)  $0.30 / sq. ft. 

Manufacturing or Industrial (new, addition or alteration) $10.00 / $1,000.00 valuation 

Commercial , structures, alterations, residing, reroofing, 
repairs, where square footage cannot be calculated 

 

Plan Examination: $150.00 

            One and Two Family Residence $150.00 plus $10.00 /unit 
 

            Apartments, Three Family Residence, Row 
            Housing, Multiple family Building 
            State Approved Plans 

$350.00 
 

Commercial, Industrial, Institutional & Additions 
            State Approved Plans 

$125.00/ Plan 

            Heating Plans, Energy Calculations, or Lighting 
            Plans submitted separately 

$75.00 

 Additions, Alterations to 1 & 2 Family Dwellings $40.00 

            Accessory building over 240 sq. ft., and decks for 
            1 & 2 family dwellings 

$45.00 

Wisconsin Uniform Building Permit Seal $60.00 
$100.00 

Occupancy Permit – Residential $75.00 



 6 

Commercial and Industrial 
Temporary (6 months or less Commercial only) $200.00 Commercial  

$50 Residential 
Permit Renewal (6 month extension or less)  

Heating and Air Conditioning: $3.00/ 100 sq. ft. of conditioned area 
with a minimum fee of $60.00 

Heating and Air Conditioning Distribution Systems  $125.00 first unit, $60.00 each additional 
unit. 

 
$60.00 / unit 

 
$150.00/ unit, up to and including 

150,000 BTU units. Additional fee of 
$20.00 / each 50,000 BTU fraction thereof 

up to a maximum of $900.00 / unit. 
New Residential Heating 
 
 
Replacement Residential Heating 
 
Commercial New or Replacement Heating 

$60.00 / unit 
 

Residential Air Conditioning – Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 
 

 
$150.00/ unit up to 5tons or 60,000 

BTU's. Additional fee of $20.00 each ton 
or 12,000 BTU's or fraction thereof up to 

a maximum of $900.00 / unit 
Commercial Air Conditioning - Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 

$60.00 / unit 

Permanently installed Wall unit (example – Fireplace, wall pack) $75.00  

Commercial/Industrial Exhaust Hoods and Exhaust Systems  

Plumbing Permit: $15.00/ fixture, drain or device, 
 $60.00 Minimum 

Fixture Count $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main, $60.00 Minimum   

 
Water Main $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   

private water main, / $9.00 per 
manhole$60.00 Minimum 

Sanitary Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main / $12.00 per manhole 

or basin $60.00 Minimum 
Storm Sewer $100.00 

Exterior Grease Trap  

Electrical: $60.00 minimum.  
 

Residential Minimum $100.00/ Service First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

New Residential Service $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   



 7 

private water main,  $60.00 minimum & 
/ $9.00 per manhole. 

Sanitary Sewer $100.00/ Service 

Residential Service Update $50.00/ Panel 

Residential Sub-Panel $75.00 (includes gas piping) 

Residential Generator $100.00 up to 200 Amps. 
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Temporary Electrical Service $150.00 Minimum 

Commercial Electrical Minimum $150.00/ Inspection 

Commercial Electrical Re-Inspections $150.00 First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Service ( New or Update) $50.00 First 100 Amps,  
$10.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Sub-Panel $150.00 (included gas piping) 

Commercial Generator $1.00/ Device, $100.00 Minimum 

Commercial Low Voltage $100.00 per site 

Commercial Exterior Light Fixture Replacement $0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,   
$60.00 minimum. 

 
$0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,  

$150.00 minimum. 
Residential Electrical Permit - for minor installations with fees 
not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector.  
Commercial Electrical Permit - for minor installations with 
fees not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector. 

 

Erosion control fees: $125.00 / lot 

            New One and Two Family Buildings $50.00 

            One and Two Family Additions and Accessory 
            Structures 

 $175.00/Building, plus $5.00/1,000 sq. 
ft. disturbed lot area up to $2,000.00 max. 

            Multi-Family Residential, Commercial, Industrial  
            and Institutional 

$40.00 

            Other  

Zoning $60.00 

Zoning Permit $60.00 

Certificate of Occupancy (per Section 98-909) $60.00 

Temporary Use (per Section 98-906) $50.00 

Zoning Verification Letter $60.00 minimum or $0.35/ sq ft of sign 
area 

Sign Permit (per Section 98-907) $125.00 (1-2 family) 
$250.00 (all others) 

Early Start Permit to start construction $75.00 administrative fee/ tank for 
installation or removal 



 8 

Fuel Tanks $100.00 ( One or two family residences 
and accessory Structure over 250 sq ft) 

Wrecking or Razing- Building Inspector may waive the fee if 
the structure is condemned 

$350.00 

Commercial/ Industrial Razing $250.00 plus $0.03/ sq ft 

Moving buildings over public right-of-ways $150.00/ inspection report 

Special Inspections and Reports $400.00 

Text Amendment (per Section 98-902) $400.00 

Zoning Map Amendment (per Section 98-903) For each new Residential Lot Created: 
$400.00 

For each new Commercial Lot Created: 
$200.00 

Certified Survey Map (CSM) $150.00 

Plat Renewal $400.00 
$100.00 

Conditional Use (per Section 98-905) $400.00 

Site Plan (per Section 98-908) $400.00 

Variance (per Section 98-910) $150.00 

Interpretation (per Section 98-911) $400.00 

Appeal (per Section 98-912) $750.00 

PD Zoning Map Amendment (Includes 1 PIP Review) $400.00 

PIP Review $10.00 

Filing or Recording fee with City Clerk, plus actual recording 
fee 

 

• Triple Fees: Upon failure to obtain a permit 
before work on a building has been started, 
except in emergency cases, the total fee shall be 
triple the total fees charged. 

 

NOTE: Fees shall be charged on gross square footage defined 
as follows: 
The exterior dimensions, including attached garage and each 
floor level 

 

NOTE: In determining costs, all construction shall be included 
with the exception of heating, air conditioning, electrical or 
plumbing work. 

 

NOTE: All fee amounts shall be rounded up to the next full 
dollar amount. 

 

NOTE: An additional fee for plan review may be assessed at the time of application for renewal of the 
permit. 

* Base fee may be modified by Subsection (4) of Section 98-935, Fees of the Zoning Code 

 
CEMETERY FEES $675.00 
Opening Grave – Weekdays (Full Burial) $800.00 
Opening Grave - Saturdays (Full Burial) $450.00 



 9 

Opening Grave – Weekdays (Cremation) $525.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays (Cremation) $100.00 extra charge 
Two cremations buried in same grave at one time $200.00 
Opening Grave – Weekdays - Baby Under 1 Year   $300.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays - Baby Under 1 Year  $650.00 
Grave (50% Perpetual Care) $400.00 
Grave – Single Cremation (50% Perpetual Care) $500.00 
Grave – Double Cremation (50% Perpetual Care)  $1,200.00 

$1,000.00 bottom row 
Columbarium Niche (includes opening & inurnment)  
($200 Perpetual Care) 

$150.00 additional 

2nd Inurnment if Niche allows for two $240.00 
Niche Door Inscriptions $75.00 
Frost Charges (November 1 to March 15) $50.00 
Stake Out Fee for Foundations $0.40 per square inch 
Foundation Charges 20% of Gross Receipts 

Use of Cemetery for Functions 

POLICE DEPARTMENT FEES  
FINGERPRINTING $15.00 
          City Residents  

$15.00 
          Individuals employed in business in city limits  
          or working for city licensed business 

$60.00 

          Non-Residents 

PUBLIC WORKS FEES  
CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FEE  
          Curb Cut/Driveway Approach Fee $25.00 
          Right-of-Way Excavation Fee $25.00 
          Storm Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
          Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
Special brush, limb and refuse pick-up $24.00 per 15 minutes 
Dumpster Delivery $50.00 per dumpster 
Dumpster Pick-up $50.00 plus additional landfill fees 

 
 
 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES 

Fees for Apparatus and Personnel 1 hour minimum 
and fractions 

thereafter 
on hourly rates 

unless stated 
otherwise 

Chief, Deputy Chief or Assistant Chief $26.00/hr. 
Fire and EMS Personnel $26.00/hr. 



 10 

Engine/Squad $550.00/hr. 
Truck (aerial apparatus) $875.00/hr. 
Brush Truck $300.00/hr. 
Air Boat $300.00/hr. 
Technical Rescue and Utility $500.00/hr. 
Chief, Deputy Chief, Assistant Chief, or Command Vehicle $50.00/hr. 
Utility $50.00/hr. 
Ambulance $270.00/hr. 
Paramedic Intercept Fee (Option a OR b)  

a.  Flat Rate Billed to Requesting Municipality $400.00 
b.  Shared Revenue from Requesting Municipality 50% Monies 

Received 
EMS First Responder and Transport Fees   

Residents Fee $150.00 per call 
Non-Resident Fee $200.00 per call 

Ambulance Transport Fee Schedule   
Advanced Life Support Base Rate $918.89 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (ALS2) $1010.47 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept) $918.89 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept ALS2) $1010.47 
Equal Level Staffing Mutual Aid $300.00 
Basic Life Support Base Rate $700.00 
Mileage Charge $20.00 per mile 
Supplies used fee   

Defibrillation $100.00 
EKG Monitoring $150.00 
Spinal Immobilization $150.00 
I/O Needle & Associated Supplies $200.00 
Airway Placement $150.00 
Oxygen & Associated Supplies $100.00 
IV & Associated Supplies $150.00 
CPAP Disposable $150.00 
Epi 1:1,000 $35.00 
Nitro Tabs $22.00 
Albuterol/Ventolin $30.00 
Glucagon $211.00 
Narcan $48.00 
ASA $32.00 
Dextrose 25gms/50cc $32.00 
Glucose $10.50 
CO2 Monitor Nasal/Tube $40.00 

Formatted: Font: Bold, Font color: Dark Red

Formatted: Font color: Dark Red

Formatted: Font: Bold, Font color: Dark Red

Deleted: $600.00

Formatted: Font color: Dark Red

Formatted: Font color: Dark Red

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.57" + Indent at:  0.82"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Dark Red

Formatted: Right

Formatted: Font color: Dark Red

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.57" + Indent at:  0.82"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Dark Red

Formatted: Font color: Dark Red

Formatted: Right



 11 

Oil Dry $10.00 per bag 
Class A, B, or AB Firefighting Foam $30.00/gallon 
BLS Supplies Used $75.00 
ALS Supplies Used $125.00 

Paramedic Medications  
Adenocard $31.00 
Amiodorone $125.00 
Atropine $37.00 
Calcium Chloride $43.00 
Dextrose 5% $32.00 
Diltiazem $9.00 
Diphenhydramine $5.00 
Epi 1:10,000 $16.00 
Etomidate $94.00 
Heparin $32.00 
Ketamine $54.00 
Lidocaine $36.00 
Magnesium Sulfate $7.00 
Methylprednisolone $101.00 
Metoprolol $9.00 
Midazolam $68.00 
Norepinephrine $22.00 
Ondansteron $28.00 
Sodium Bicarbinate $37.00 
Sublimaze $5.00 
Succinylcholine $41.00 
Clopidogral $19.00 
Dopamine $97.00 
Hydromorphone $10.00 
Hydroxycobalamin $1270.00 
Metoclopromide $5.00 
Morphine Sulfate $56.00 
Trananexamic Acid $96.00 

Fees Relating To Permits Required  

           Fire pit burn permit 
$15.00 each fire or 

$50.00 yr 
           Fireworks permit $50.00 
           Burning permits $50.00 
           Key box processing fee $10.00 
           Operational Permit $75.00 
Fees Relating To Fire Protection Systems  
Basic system Review  
Fee is charged for systems without hydraulic calcs 

                    $250 

Fire Sprinkler, Fire Control and/or Fire Suppression system plan 
review with one set of hydraulic calculations.  (Fee is charged for 
each separate floor and /or area of building per system and 
review.) 

$300.00 



 12 

Verifications of  Additional Hydraulic Calcs 
(fee is charged for each additional set of hydraulic calculations 
required by the AHJ) 

$175.00 

Additional review of same system.  (Fee applies to all re-
submittals.) 

       $300 

 Site inspection during installation 
2 hour minimum Note: system may not be concealed prior to 
inspection.  Inspections are required for all systems. 

$75.00/hr. 

Modifications to existing systems  
   Min. fee per system without hydraulic calcs $75.00 
   Fee per sprinkler up to 15 sprinklers w/o calcs $20.00 ea. 
   Fee per sprinkler up to 15 with calcs $200.00 
   Fire Pumps per review $300.00 
Fire prevention inspection fee schedule:  
Residential Building Type:  

   4 to 36 units 
 $10 per unit per 

year 
   37 to 60 units  $400 per year 
   61 to 99 units  $450 per year 
   100 units and above  $500 per year 
Commercial:  
   Under 1,000 square feet  $50 
   1,000 to 4,999 square feet  $100 
   5,000 to 24,999 square feet  $150 
   25,000 to 99,000 square feet  $200 
   100,000 to 174,999 square feet  $400 
   175,000 to 249,999 square feet  $700 
Industrial:  
   Under 5,000 square feet  $100 
   5,000 to 24,999 square feet  $200 
   25,000 to 99,000 square feet  $300 
   100,000 to 174,999 square feet  $500 
   175,000 to 349,999 square feet  $800 
Additional conditions: 
(a) The fee for hotels and motels shall be the same as for 
residential property, except that the fee shall be calculated on a 
per room basis. 
(b) Square footage refers to the total floor area of any building or 
structure. 
(c) Inspection fees shall be charged to the property owner. Any 
fees unpaid by November 1 of each year shall be entered upon the 
tax roll as a special charge against the property and all 
proceedings in relation to the collection, return, and sale of the 
property for delinquent real estate taxes, shall apply to the 
inspection fee. 

 

Sprinkler system underground mains  
   0-200 feet $75.00 
   201-999 feet $125.00 
   1000 or more                 $300 

https://www.ecode360.com/14136054#14136054
https://www.ecode360.com/14136055#14136055
https://www.ecode360.com/14136056#14136056


 13 

Fire hose standpipe connections $15.00 each 
Other fire protection systems (hood, wet & dry chem.)                    $300 
Fire alarm systems per control panel $250.00 
Fire Alarm system manual pull stations, initiating devices; this 
includes smoke, heat, flame, ionization, photoelectric detectors, 
water flow devices and all monitoring devices per review. 

$50.00 up to 3 
$10 each additional 

Witness of all required tests – 2 hour minimum           $150/hr. 
Inspection during installation $75.00/hr. 
Fire protection Consulting on systems and or for occupancies or 
permits 

$75.00/hr. 
1 Hour Minimum 

 
Adopted this 24th day of June, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Thomas Hartz, Mayor                                     Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                    Date 
       
 

Deleted: 8

Deleted: May















































 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Tristan Crist, 100 Skyline 
Dr., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to allow for a Commercial Outdoor Entertainment land use for the patio 
area to include all affirmative findings of fact, and staff recommendations, and that amplified music 
not be allowed and that outdoor entertainment shall cease one hour after the commencement of the last 
show of the evening. The property is located at 100 N Edwards Blvd., located within the Planned 
Business (PB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZA196100004 

 
Committee: 

 
Plan Commission approved June 17, 2019 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19 – R46 Date: June 24, 2019 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Tristan Crist, 100 

Skyline Dr., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the amendment to the existing Conditional Use Permit; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper notice 
given on June 6, 2019. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is hereby 
authorized, to issue an amended Conditional Use Permit to Tristan Crist, 100 N Edwards Blvd., located in 
the Planned Development (PD) zoning district,  
 

Tax Key No. ZA196100004 
 
to include all affirmative findings of fact, and staff recommendations, and that amplified music not be 
allowed and that outdoor entertainment shall cease one hour after the commencement of the last show of 
the evening. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of June 2019. 
 
 

Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
 
Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 



  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  June 17, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description of Proposed Conditional Uses: 

The applicant is submitting to “Amend” the original Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the 

Tristan Crist Magic Theater.  The original approval motion did not specify the “Outdoor 

Commercial Entertainment” that would allow them to utilize the patio for the service of alcoholic 

beverages.  

This was identified as lacking in the approval by the City Clerk when reviewing the Alcohol 

License Application. It was included in the original request, albeit not identified in the motion. 

The remainder of this staff report reflects the original approval from April 2018 without change. 

 

The subject property is located south of the Aldi’s grocery store and north of The Ridges multi-

family development on the west side of North Edwards Boulevard – across the street from 

Walmart. The property is located in an area with expired Planned Development zoning, with 

Planned Business (PB) as the baseline zoning district. The proposed theater is regulated as an 

Indoor Commercial Entertainment land use by the Zoning Ordinance, which requires a CUP in 

the PB District. A request to amend the Zoning Map from the old Planned Development back to 

the PB District was considered by the Plan Commission tonight, on the immediately preceding 

agenda item. 

The proposed theater would provide 150 seats, to be served by a parking lot with 52 stalls. This 

slightly exceeds the zoning ordinance requirement of 1 parking stall for every 3 seats. 

The proposed Building Elevations depict a main entrance with wall signage over the doors, at the 

northwest corner of the building. The building will be dominated by windows on its north (front) 

side and will include metal siding with concealed fasteners (per the Zoning Ordinance), and 

stone veneer. The look of the front elevation will wrap around to the east side of the building, 

which faces Edwards Boulevard. The metal and stone exterior materials will also be continued 

on the south and west sides of the building. 

Applicant: 

TC Productions LLC 

100 N. Edwards Blvd. 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 

Public Hearing & Recommendation to Amend 

the Conditional Use Permit for Indoor 

Commercial Entertainment to include   

Outdoor Commercial Entertainment for the 

Magic Theater at 100 North Edwards Blvd. 

Tax Key No: ZA196100004. 

  

Agenda Item #7 



The proposed Landscaping Plan exceeds the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. In addition 

to significant new landscaping, the Plan depicts the preservation of the existing plants located 

along the south property line. The depicted monument sign and wall sign also meet all 

requirements. 

The proposed Grading and Erosion Control Plan accommodates on-site stormwater management 

and also provides for the management of overland stormwater flows coming through the site 

from the southwest to the northeast. These plans have been carefully reviewed by City Staff and 

the City’s Engineering Consultant. 

Finally, in several of the submittal materials, the term “Phase 1” is used. This notation refers to 

the ability of the site to provide for expansion of the proposed building – most likely to the north. 

Such potential future expansion is not being proposed or reviewed at this time. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review: 

The proposed conditional use is fully consistent with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 

The project has been carefully designed to address the current state of rough grading on the 

property and existing overland stormwater flows, as well as proposed additional flow from this 

project. 

Staff notes that potential building expansion will be subject in any and all instances to Site Plan 

review by the Plan Commission. If said expansion involves an expansion of the Theater indoor 

commercial entertainment land use, a revised Conditional Use Permit will be required.  If said 

expansion involves one or more separate businesses, a new Conditional Use Permit will be 

required for a multi-tenant Group Development project. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 



and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site 

plan, does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 

health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 

developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the 

Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 

consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having 

jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 

will not impose an undue burden, on any improvements, facilities, utilities, or services 

provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential 

adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 

such impacts. 

 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 

pursuant to official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site 

plan, does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 

health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 

developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the 

Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 

consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having 

jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land 

use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, 

and will impose an undue burden, on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 

adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 

such impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed 

conditional use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided 

above. 

 







 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Elizabeth Tumas, 1142 
Cypress Point, Twin Lakes, WI 53181 for the property located at 617 W. Main St to allow outdoor 
music this request is for a Commercial Outdoor Entertainment land use, located in the Central 
Business (CB) zoning district. Tax Key No. ZOP00291. 

 
Committee: 

 
Plan Commission approved June 17, 2019 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19 – R47 Date: June 24, 2019 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Elizabeth Tomas, 1142 

Cypress Point, Twin Lakes, WI 53181, for the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper notice 
given on June 6, 2019. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is hereby 
authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to Elizabeth Tomas, 617 W. Main St a Commercial Outdoor 
Entertainment land use, located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district.  
 

Tax Key No. ZOP00291 
 

to include all affirmative findings of fact, and note staff recommendations, and to limit the playing of 
amplified music to 8 PM, and to limit the music the amplification of music towards the rear of the patio. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of June 2019. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
 
Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 

playing of music outside of the business which would require the issuance of a Commercial Outdoor 

Entertainment land use located in the Central Business (CB) zoning classification.  

In past applications for outdoor music the “restriction of amplified music” was identified in the motion.  

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

Applicant: 

Elizabeth Tumas 

1142 Cypress Point 

Twin Lakes, WI 53181 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

Allow for the Playing of outdoor music in the 

Central Business (CB) zoning district 

617 W. Main St. Tax Key No. ZOP00291 

 

Agenda Item: #8 



2 
 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 

use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 

by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 

provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 

uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 



3 
 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 

with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 
 

 























 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by Tom and Denise 
Pecora, 911 Mason Ln., Lake in the Hills, IL 60156, for the installation of 90’ long 6’ wide pier and 
one boat slip located at1550 Lake Shore Dr., within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, 
Tax Key No. ZLM00048. 

 
Committee: 

 
Plan Commission approved June 17, 2019 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19 – R48 Date: June 24, 2019 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Tom and Denise Pecora, 

911 Mason Ln., Lake in the Hills, IL 60156, for the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper notice 
given on June 6, 2019. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is hereby 
authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to Tom and Denise Pecora, for the installation of 90’ long 6’ 
wide pier and one boat slip located at at1550 Lake Shore Dr., within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning 
district.  
 

Tax Key No. ZLM00048 
 

to include all affirmative findings of fact, and note staff recommendations. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of June 2019. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
 
Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 

installation of a pier which would require the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  

The proposed pier will be 90’ long 6’ wide with one boat slip 12’ x 34’ connected by a 6’ wide pier and 

5’ catwalk around the slip located at 1550 Lake Shore Dr. Tax Key No. ZLM00048. 

Approvals from the DNR have not been received, albeit they were submitted by the applicant to the 

DNR for review. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

Applicant: 

Tom & Denise Pecora 

911 Mason Ln. 

Lake in the Hills, IL 60156 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

Allow for a 90’ long 6’ wide Pier installation in 

the Estate Residential - 1 (ER-1) zoning district 

1550 Lake Shore Dr. Tax Key No. ZLM00048 

 

Agenda Item: #9 



2 
 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 

use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 

by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 

provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 

uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



3 
 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 

with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 
 

 

 



























 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by SCH Lake LLC, 131 
Dearborne St., Chicago, IL 60603 for the installation of 100’ long 8’ wide pier and two boat slip 
located at 700 S. Lake Shore Dr., within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. 
ZBB00007A. 

 
Committee: 

 
Plan Commission approved June 17, 2019 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19 – R49 Date: June 24, 2019 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of SCH Lake LLC, 131 

Dearborne St., Chicago, IL 60603, for the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper notice 
given on June 6, 2019. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is hereby 
authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to SCH Lake LLC, for the installation of 100’ long 8’ wide pier 
and two boat slip located at 700 S. Lake Shore Dr., within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district.  
 

Tax Key No. ZBB00007A 
 

to include all affirmative findings of fact, and note staff recommendations. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of June 2019. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
 
Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 

installation of a pier which would require the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  

The proposed pier will be 100’ long 8’ wide with a 20’ 8’ wide mooring and (2) 12’ wide 34’ long boat 

slips located at 700 S. Lake Shore Dr. Tax Key No. ZBB00007A. 

Approvals from the DNR have not be received, albeit they were submitted by the applicant to the DNR 

for review. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

Applicant: 

SCH Lake LLC 

131 South Dearborne St 

Chicago, IL 60603 

  

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

Allow for a 100’ long 8’ wide Pier and 2 – slips 

installed in the Estate Residential - 1 (ER-1) 

zoning district 700 South Lake Shore Dr.         

Tax Key No. ZBB00007A 

 

Agenda Item: #10 



2 
 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 

use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 

by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 

provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 

uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



3 
 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 

with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 
 

 

 

 



























 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by Samantha Strenger, 
615 Center St., Lake Geneva WI, 53147 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging at 695 Wells Street, 
located in the Planned Business District (PB) zoning, Tax Key No. ZOP00399C. 

 
Committee: 

 
Plan Commission approved June 17, 2019 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19 – R50 Date: June 24, 2019 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Samantha Strenger, 615 

Center St., Lake Geneva WI, 53147, for the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper notice 
given on June 6, 2019. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is hereby 
authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to Samantha Strenger, to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging 
at 695 Wells Street, located in the Planned Business District (PB) zoning,  
 

Tax Key No. ZOP00399C 
 

to include all affirmative findings of fact, and note staff recommendations. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of June 2019. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
 
Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 

 



1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 

Commercial Indoor Lodging which is permitted in with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  

The applicant property will provide (3 lodgings) in the existing 3 apartments that will be utilized as the 

Commercial Indoor Lodging land use in addition the property has an existing Commercial Retail space 

on the first floor, at 695 Wells St. Tax Key No. ZOP00399C. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

Applicant: 

Samantha Strenger 

615 Center St. 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

For Commercial Indoor Lodging in Planned 

Business (PB) zoning district 

695 Wells St. Tax Key No. ZOP00399C 

 

Agenda Item: #11 



2 
 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 

use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 

by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 

provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 

uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



3 
 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 

with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 

 

 

 

 



























 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) filed by Brian Dalton, 353 
S. Lake St., Grayslake, IL 60030, to allow Commercial Indoor Lodging at 406 Wells St. The property 
is located at 406 Wells St., situated in Neighborhood Business (NB) zoning district Tax Key No. 
ZOP00353. 

 
Committee: 

 
Plan Commission approved June 17, 2019 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19 – R51 Date: June 24, 2019 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Brian Dalton, 353 S. Lake 

St., Grayslake, IL 60030, for the issuance of a Precise Implementation Plan. 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper notice 
given on June 6, 2019. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is hereby 
authorized, to issue a Precise Implementation Plan to Brian Dalton, to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging 
at 406 Wells Street, located in the Neighborhood Business (NB) zoning district,  
 

Tax Key No. ZOP00353 
 

to include all affirmative findings of fact, and note staff recommendations, to include the site guidelines 
found in section 98-206(8)(y)(1)(d), not to include (8)(y)(1)(b); (8)(y)(1)(c); (8)(y)(1)(d)(v); (8)(y)(1)(e); & 
(8)(y)(1)(f) of the Tourist Rooming House program relating to the site guidelines and property operational 
standards. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of June 2019. 
 
 

Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
 
Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 



  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request to amend the existing Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) that 

would allow for the Commercial Indoor Lodging to be utilized at this property as currently written.  

The existing Precise Implementation Plan request by the previous owners identified maximum of 50 day 

to be rented as a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility. This request would allow the current limit of 50 

days and increase the Commercial Indoor Lodging to 365 days if approved. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested IPP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed PIP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for PIPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Applicant: 

Kevin & Brian Dalton 

353 S. Lake St. 

Grays Lake, IL 60030 

Request: Amending Precise Implementation Plan 

(PIP) in the Planned Development (PD) zoning 

district 406 Wells St. Tax Key No. ZOP00353 

Agenda Item: #13 



2 
 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 



3 
 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 

with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 
 





 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page Description          PAGE 

Letter of Intent - Proposed Use, Activities, Landscape Plan .............................................. 1 

Example Rental Agreement ................................................................................................ 3 

Quiet Hours Signage ........................................................................................................... 7 

Location Map (Zoning Map) ................................................................................................ 8 

Map Showing Properties within 300 Feet ........................................................................... 9 

Map Showing Property Dimensions ..................................................................................10 

Aerial Map w/ Rental Properties Proximity to 406 Wells ..................................................11 

Survey of 406 Wells Street (Including Parking Spaces) ..................................................12 

Letter of Intent Susan Ekizian 2013 ..................................................................................13 

Plan Commission Minutes 08.19.13 .................................................................................14 

Council Minutes 08.26.13 ..................................................................................................19 

Ordinance No 13 -17 08.26.13 Zoning Map Amendment ................................................23 

Floorplan of 406 Wells St (4 Bedroom & 2 Bath) .............................................................24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Lake Geneva Council, 
 

We are proposing an amendment to the Precise Implementation Plan that the 
Council approved on Aug 26, 2013.  On Aug 26, 2013, 406 S. Wells Street was approved to 
allow for Commercial Indoor Lodging for up to 50 days per year. At the time, the owner 
desired to only rent for 50 days a year as she used the property as a primary residence in 
the non-summer months.  Please see her initial request on page 13.  We are requesting to 
extend the Commercial Indoor Lodging to as currently written in the zoning ordinance.  
 

On August 26, 2013, 406 S. Wells Street was rezoned from Neighborhood Business 
(NB) to Planned Development (PD).  Alderman Hougen said the ordinance was required to 
help facilitate the property owners request to operate a commercial lodging establishment. 
He also said it is an appropriate use for the parcel and it is in harmony with nearby 
properties.  The nearby properties include: 314 S. Wells St. (Maxwell Mansion) a historic 
hotel located directly across Baker Street from 406 S. Wells Street; 412 S. Wells Street 
(located two houses to the south of 406 S. Wells Street) a Commercial Indoor lodging 
establishment accepting renters 365 days/year; 414/416 Baker Street (located directly 
behind 406 S. Wells Street) a short term vacation rental; 335 Lakeshore Drive (located a half 
block from 406 Wells Street); 419 Cass Ave (located a block from 406 Wells Street across 
from the Maxwell Mansion); 415 S Lakeshore Drive (located behind 412 Wells Street); 429 S 
Lakeshore Drive (located a block from 406 Wells Street).  Please see the attached map on 
page 11 with the properties mentioned above circled to show the proximity to 406 S. Wells 
Street.  
 

On August 26, 2013 the Precise Implementation Plan filed by Susan Ekizian was 
approved to allow for Commercial Indoor Lodging at 406 S. Wells Street. Alderman Hougen 
said neighbors expressed concerns with the number of cars that would be parked at the 
property.  The concerns were made conditions for approval of the Precise Implementation 
Plan.  406 S. Wells Street was approved to have a maximum of 8 cars parked at the 
property.  The council approved the owner’s request that Commercial Indoor Lodging be 
allowed but limited to 50 days per year, as 50 days was the duration requested by the 
applicant.  Please see page 21 stating approval for Commercial Indoor Lodging at 406 S. 
Wells Street.  
 

My brother and I took ownership of the property on May 10, 2019.  Our intention is 
to continue to utilize the home as a short term vacation rental.   We have full intentions on 
keeping the home as it is viewed today.  We currently own two successful short term 
vacation rentals in the area that have over 300 five star reviews on short term rental listing 
websites.  We have never had an incident where a neighbor had a major complaint, or law 
enforcement had to be called, in our over 5 years as short term rental owners, with over 
300 groups of guests.  This can be attributed to our screening of prospective guests, the 
strict rules we have in place, and the signage inside the property. Please find attached on 
Page 7 a sign that is posted prominently in multiple locations inside the home.  Nearly all of 
the guests we have had are families with children on vacation or women’s getaway 
weekends.  
 

We have many processes in place to ensure the behavior of our guests is in line with 
neighborhood living.   Each renter receives a rental agreement that they must sign that 

1 



details the rules of renting the property, and the monetary consequences of failing to follow 
stated rules.  We have attached an example copy of the rental agreement that is used on 
page 3.  We speak to all prospective guests by telephone prior to their stay and reinforce to 
each guest that renting the home is a privilege we have as owners.  For each guest, we go 
over, in detail, the strict house rules that we have, and the respect each guest must pay to 
the surrounding businesses and homes.  We have been, and will continue to be, very 
selective of whom we rent to, as we take pride in our homes and in no way want our guests 
to become a nuisance to the community.  We have always targeted families coming to the 
area for a weekend or on summer vacation.  Bachelor, Bachelorette, Sorority, Fraternity, 
and Prom parties are strictly forbidden, as detailed in our rental agreement.   Kevin and I are 
frequently at the homes we own greeting and checking on guests, ensuring they are 
enjoying everything Lake Geneva has to offer.  We take swift action in an event our guests 
are not following the rules set forth, with immediate eviction as the first step. 

  
We plan to attract respectable parties at a higher price point than moderate hotels. 

We firmly believe that visitors to Lake Geneva desire a more intimate overnight stay at a 
home rather than a hotel.  The City of Lake Geneva will serve to benefit from the tourist 
dollar from the guests of the home.  The guests will primarily being shopping at the local 
stores and eating at the local restaurants that are all within walking distance from the home. 
The City of Lake Geneva will also benefit from the lodging tax that each guest pays for their 
stay.  
 

We feel that the home is capable of comfortably sleeping 12 guests with its four 
bedroom layout.  The home is a corner lot, with a hotel across the street, a business next 
door, a short term vacation rental two doors down, and a short term vacation rental behind 
the home as detailed above.  It is highly unlikely that a guest in the home will create a 
disturbance to a primary resident given the nature of the businesses surrounding the home 
and the strict rules we have in place. 
 

The previous owner provided a landscape buffer to the surrounding neighbors by 
installing a fence around the perimeter of the backyard, and to the side of the garage, the 
maximum square footage allowed by the city.  There will be no signage on the property 
advertising the home as a vacation rental, as we do not wish to create an eyesore for the 
neighbors.  
 

In closing, we plan to monitor the number of renters to our home in an initial phone 
interview.  We will inform the renters that we periodically stop by the property to check on 
how their stay is going and to monitor their respect to the community.  The noise ordinance 
rules of Lake Geneva will be prominently displayed in multiple locations inside the home, 
and agreed to in the signed rental agreement by each guest.  We will ensure that each guest 
has the utmost respect for the beautiful City of Lake Geneva.  Thank you for taking the time 
to consider the amendment request to the Precise Implementation Plan. 
 
 
Brian Dalton and Kevin Dalton 
 
 
 

2 



 
 

Baker St Bungalow Vacation Rental Agreement 
  

Our goal is to make your rental stay as enjoyable as possible, ensuring your fun, safety, and comfort at 
every opportunity.  We hope to make YOU feel at home, and hope you will treat our home as if it 
were your own! Thank you for choosing us.  We truly value and appreciate your business. 
  
This rental/booking agreement entered into via our various on-line services is hereby confirmed and 
agreed to, and is between KBM Rentals LLC (“the Owners”) and XXXXXX(“the Guest(s)), as named 
and signed at the end of this agreement.  
  
YOU NEED TO BE AT LEAST 25 YEARS OF AGE TO RENT THIS PROPERTY. THIS 
PROPERTY IS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FAMILY GATHERINGS, COUPLES GETAWAYS, 
GIRLFRIEND GETAWAYS, CHURCH OR CORPORATE RETREATS AND GOLF 
OUTINGS-NO AFTER PROM PARTIES, FRATERNITY OR SORORITY PARTIES 
ALLOWED!  
  
Reservation Information 
Guest – XXXXX 
Phone – XXXXX 
Email – XXXXX 
Unit – 406 Wells St, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Dates – Arrival:  XXXXX Departure: XXXXX 
  
Rental – $XXX.XX 
Cleaning – $XXX.XX 
Tax - $XX.XX 
VRBO Service Charge – $XX.XX 
Total – $XXXX.XX 
  
Refundable Damage Deposit - $XXXX.XX 
  
The Guest and Owner, in consideration of the fees paid for the use of the property (which includes 
rent, fees, taxes, and damage insurance) as agreed and acknowledged herein, agree as follows: 
  
The Guest and Owner, in consideration of the fees paid for the use of the property (which includes 
rent, fees, taxes, and damage insurance) as agreed and acknowledged herein, agree as follows: 
  
Leased Property 
The Owner agrees to rent to the Guest the house, described as 406 Wells St, Lake Geneva, WI 
53147(the “Property”), for use as a residential premise only. 
  
The Guests may occupy the property only for the period as booked. 
  
Animals are not allowed at the property 

3 



  
 
Term of Rents 
In order to supply our guests with a clean unit and avoid delays, we ask that all guests abide by our 
check-in time of 4:00 p.m. and enjoy the morning of your departure with our relaxed check-out time 
of 11:00 a.m.  Arrangements can be made for early check in or late check out depending on unit 
occupancy before and after your stay. 
  
There is no need for us to give you keys to the property as you will gain access to the home with a 
unique four digit combination, which will be sent to you prior to check-in, and is changed upon each 
tenant’s departure. 
  
All bed linens and bath towels are provided for each guest, and beach towels are provided to take to 
the beach.  A washer and dryer are in the home for your use during your stay to refresh 
bath/kitchen/beach towels. A supply of toilet paper, paper towels, and garbage bags are provided 
along with housewares.  Kitchen items are available for your use.  Bath towels are not to be taken out 
of the property for use at the beach.  
  
The guest will pay the rent as agreed, but no later than 30 days prior to the booked dates. 
  
Security and Damage Fees 
You have elected to pay the $XXX refundable damage deposit.  The monies will be refunded to you 
within 7 days of your stay provided no damage occurs.  The security deposit is to protect the unit and 
its contents from malicious or negligent damage and/or the home being left in an abnormally dirty 
condition resulting in excessive cleaning costs (i.e. carpet/furniture stains, furniture damage, 
incomplete check-out procedures, broken or stolen items, etc.).  It is unlawful to remove items from 
the home. Such actions are grounds for prosecution.  It is the renter’s responsibility to report, upon 
arrival, any damages found and/or any repairs or maintenance needed by 9am the morning after your 
arrival to Brian Dalton at 708-362-0731.  You are responsible for any and all damages that occur to 
the property or its contents by you or any other member of your group while you are a registered 
renter of the property.  Should it be necessary to pursue legal action against the renter, the renter will 
be responsible for any and all attorney and court costs.  
  
Governing Law 
This rental/booking agreement will be construed in accordance with and exclusively governed by the 
laws of the State of Wisconsin. 
  
Cancellation Policy 
Reservation may be cancelled no later than 30 days prior to your arrival date to receive a full refund 
of monies paid.  If you cancel greater than 14 days from your arrival but less than 30 days you will 
receive a 50% refund of monies paid.  If you cancel less than 14 days prior to your stay there is no 
refund. 
  
Parking/Smoking/Large Gatherings 

4 



The Guests are entitled to the use of parking available on the driveway of the Property (8 spots total). 
No trailers or other recreational type vehicles are allowed overnight parking.  These type of vehicles 
must be kept off the premises. 
  
The Guests must not smoke anywhere in the Property nor permit any other guests or visitors to smoke 
in the Property.  Any extra cleaning charges, including but not limited to carpet, furniture, draperies or 
bedding, because of smoking, will be charged a minimum of $250.00. 
  
The property may not be used for any large gatherings of any kind.  These limits and policies are 
strictly enforced.  Exceeding above stated occupancy is grounds for immediate eviction with loss of 
rental fees and entire security deposit. 
  
Quiet Time/Residential Purposes 
There is a noise curfew of 10pm. The premises shall be used for residential purposes only.  Renters 
shall peacefully and quietly occupy the premises and shall not interfere with the rights of our 
neighbors.  
  
Renting this home is a privilege that we have as owners.  If, as a renter, your actions or conduct cause 
a disturbance, you may be subject to fines and/or eviction from the property.   If the police have to be 
called, you and your party will be immediately evicted, without recourse or refunds. 
  
Phone/Cable/Wifi 
Our home has no land line phone.  Please use your cell phone during your stay.  Cable and Wifi will 
be provided during your stay, and the Wifi password will be provided. 
  
Repairs 
Appliances, toilets, heating/air conditioning systems and all mechanicals are continuously checked 
and kept maintained.  However, we cannot guarantee a mechanical may not malfunction during your 
stay.  We make every effort to have repairs made as quickly as possible.  No refunds can be made for 
failure or damage, but please report any issues as soon as possible so they may be addressed/corrected 
as quickly as possible during your stay. 
  
Housekeeping 
The home will be ready for you upon check-in and will be cleaned after you depart.  If you require 
additional cleaning during your stay or a mid-week clean and tidy, please contact us.  
  
Lost/Forgotten Items 
Although we are not responsible for forgotten personal items, we will, to the best of our ability, 
attempt to help recover any lost or forgotten items left at the unit.  Renter should report items as soon 
as possible. Shipping costs will be the responsibility of the renter.  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5 



  
  
  
 
Owners Signature_____________________________________ Date _____________________ 
  
  
  
Guests Signature______________________________________ Date ______________________ 
  
  
  
Primary Renter Cell Phone Number _________________________________ 
  
  
  
Looking forward to working with you! 
  
Brian Dalton 
(708) 362-0731 

406wells@gmail.com  
  

DAMAGE/INJURY CLAUSE 
  
Renter accepts full responsibility for any damages to the rental premises during the rental duration. 
The renter’s liability includes, but are not limited to: theft and/or damage to the furnishings and 
interior items excluding normal wear and tear.  Owner/Manager are not liable for any damages to the 
above rental property and any accident or injury that may occur during the renter’s occupancy at the 
unit.  Renter must adhere to policies and procedures.  Owner/manager take no responsibility for the 
renter’s actions. 
  
  
  
Owners Signature________________________________ Date _____________________ 
  
  
  
Guests Signature_____________________________ ___ Date ______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 



 

 
QUIET TIME IS 

10PM-7AM 
 

PLEASE 
RESPECT OUR 
NEIGHBORS! 

7 



SK
Y

L A

VI
ST

A 
DR

EL
M

 S
T

M
IL

L
S

T

CASS ST

HY 50

RUSH ST

EAGLE DR

CO
O

K
 S

T OA K
LA

LINDA LA

W
ES

T 
ST

EA
S

T
 S

T

BAKER ST

RO
M

IN
R

D

R
ID

G
E

 R
D

B
A

D
G

E
R

 L
A

ANN ST

H
IG

H
 S

T

GARDNER ST

ROGERS CT

WALKER ST

SK
YLINEDR

M

AYTAG RD

CONANT ST

CEYLON
CT

W MAIN ST

HENRY ST

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

 A
V

TO
M

IK
E 

ST

W
RIGLEY

DR

BAYVIEW
DR

GRANT ST

C
A

R
EY

 S
T

GEORGE ST

M
AX

W
EL

L 
ST

W
B

A
RR

Y

DR

R
O

LL
IN

G
 L

A

HIGHLAND WAY

MADAUS ST

H
AR

M
ON

Y
DR

BALLAD DR

O
RC

HA

RD LA

N JO S
H

U
A

LA

WISCONSIN ST

W
EST D

R

EBARR Y
D

R

M
AR

SH
A

LL
 L

A

EUGENE DR

LO
O

K
O

U
T 

D
R

BRIAR RIDGE ST

WA LC
OWIS DR

M
O

B
IL

E 
ST

A
LL

EN
DA

LE
 S

T

BO
N

N
IE

 B
RA

E 
LA

C
U

M
B

E
R

LA
N

D
TR

SA
G

E 
ST

GRAN
D

V
IEW

D
R

REEDSV
ILLE DR

MAP

LE S
T

EL
M

W
O

O
D 

AV

N KNOLL LA

HOST DRS KNOLL LA

PARK DR

S
ID

N
EY

SM
ITH

L
A

E
A

S
T

 D
R

LAKE FOREST LA

MARSHALL ST

BEETHO VE
N

DR

CANON DR

PLEASANT ST

PINE TREE LA

LA SALLE ST

CE
N

TE
R

 S
T

W
IL

M
O

T 
B

LV
D E SOUTH ST

H
IDD

EN
VALL

E

Y LA

ED

GEWOOD DR

C
E

N
T

E
R

 S
T

W MAIN ST

TOWNLINE RD

SUE ANN DR

WALWORTH ST

H
U

D
SO

N
TR

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
PK

W
Y

PARK
DR

PE
A

R
SO

N
 D

R

INTERCHANGE NORTH

FO
R

E
S

T
 S

T

FO
RE

ST
R

ES
T

LA

LA
K

E 
G

EN
EV

A 
BL

VD

OAK TER

C
ADENCE CIR

MA
ESTROCIR

HU
N

T
C

LU
B

LA

SCHAITEL RD

W
E

S
T

 S
ID

E
 R

D

P
E

LL
E

R
 R

D

W SOUTH ST

DODGE ST

G

ARRISON DR

B
O

W
IN

G
W

A

YLAGRANGE DR

LO
CK

W
O

O
D

BL
VD

EB HY 12

C
U

R
T

IS
 S

T
W

ELLS ST

G
A

LL A
N

T

DR

SOUTHWIN
D

DR

SO
NATA WAY

S
LA

K
E

SH
O

R E
DR

E MAIN ST

W
ELLS ST

CO
UN

TRY CLUBDR

CEMETERY RD

HY 50

KRUEGER RD

LO
R

AM
O

O
R

DR

CTY TK H

SN
AK

E
RD

S STONE R ID
G

E
D

R

N EDWARDS
BLVD

S
LA

K
ESH

O
R

E
D

R
W

ILLIA
M

S
ST

HY 50

N
O

R
T

H
 R

D

C
TY

TK
N

N

TOWNLINE RD

E
D

W
A

R
D

S
 B

LV
D

S LAKESHORE DR

S
P

R
IN

G
 C

R
E

E
K

 R
D

GENEVA PKWY

HY 120

N BLOOMFIELD RD

EB HY 12

CTY TK H

W

B
HY

12

W
B HY 12

W
H

IT
E

 P
IG

E
O

N
 R

D

WILLOW RD

P
IL

G
R

IM
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 R

D

HY 120

HY
120

EB HY 12 WB HY 12

SHERIDAN SPRINGS RD

ER-1

SR-3

NO

SR-4

SR-4

TR-6

TR-6

TR-6

TR-6

TR-6

MR-8

CB

ER-1

PB

RH

RH

NO

PD

NB

SR-3

SR-4

MR-8

GB

NB

NO

PB

RH

PBP

PB

PD

NB

GB

PB

SR-4

ER-1

RH

GI
PD

PD

GB

GI

SR-3 PB
PD

PB

NB

PB

PD

RH

PD

NC

SR-4

RH

CR-5

SR-4

PI

PI

RH

PD

PB

PD

SR-4

ER-1

PD

SR-4

RH

RH

SR-4

ER-1

SR-4

RH
RH

RH

RH

PI

PD

GI

PO

PO

SR-4

PB

RH

MR-8

RH

TR-6

PI

MR-8

C-2

TR-6

RH

MR-8

RH

PD
PD

TR-6

PBP

MR-8

CB

CB

CB

CB

ER-1

CB

PD

SR-4

ER-1

PD

CB

SR-4

TR-6

PD

Geneva
Lake

Resource Conservation District

Central Business

Countryside Residential - 5AC

Estate Residential -1

General Business

General Industrial

Heavy Industrial

Multi-family Residential-8

Neighborhood Business

New Commercial

Neighborhood Office

Planned Business

Planned Business Park

Planned Development

Planned Industrial

Planned Office

Rural Holding

Single-family Residential-3

Single-family Residential-4

Two-family Residential-6

ST O N EY B R OO K T R

BOULDERRID GE CT

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000500
Feet

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1
Miles ICity of Lake Geneva

Zoning Map on Aerial Background

BRIAN DALTON
23

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
8



5/5/2019 Walworth County, WI - OneView

https://gisinfo.co.walworth.wi.us/oneview/ 1/1

0 200 400ft

+
–

X

rent scale

intout
.wi.us/arcgis/rest/directories/arcgisjobs/printtask/exportwebmap_gpserver/j54823d7da43044a2b806dcd87c268f8c/scratch/d329e07305aa4e83bd4450c19d262537.pdf)

∧

 Walworth County, WI ‑ OneView
Help    Employee LoginResources

()

Search for a Parcel or Address

https://gisinfo.co.walworth.wi.us/arcgis/rest/directories/arcgisjobs/printtask/exportwebmap_gpserver/j54823d7da43044a2b806dcd87c268f8c/scratch/d329e07305aa4e83bd4450c19d262537.pdf
https://gisinfo.co.walworth.wi.us/oneview/
BRIAN DALTON
24

BRIAN DALTON

�

BRIAN DALTON
9



 



BRIAN DALTON
26

BRIAN DALTON

�

BRIAN DALTON

�

BRIAN DALTON
11



27

Parking Space 1

Parking Space 2

Parking Space 3

Parking Space 4

Parking Space 5

Parking Space 6

Parking Space 7

Parking Space 8

BRIAN DALTON

�

BRIAN DALTON
12



BRIAN DALTON
29

BRIAN DALTON
28

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
13

BRIAN DALTON



BRIAN DALTON
29

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
14



BRIAN DALTON
30

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
15



BRIAN DALTON
31

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
16



BRIAN DALTON
32

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
17



BRIAN DALTON
33

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
18



BRIAN DALTON
34

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
19



BRIAN DALTON
35

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
20



BRIAN DALTON
36

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
21



BRIAN DALTON
37

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
22

BRIAN DALTON
22



BRIAN DALTON
38

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
23



BRIAN DALTON
39

BRIAN DALTON


BRIAN DALTON
24



 
MAYOR’S OFFICE 

TOM HARTZ 
626 GENEVA STREET 

LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN 
262-249-4085      

THARTZ@CITYOFLAKEGENEVA.COM 
 
 
 
June 20, 2019 
 
 
Subject:  APA Great Places Nomination – Lake Geneva Shore Path 
 
Dear Awards Jury, 
 
The City of Lake Geneva by its Mayor and City Council support the nomination of the Lake 
Geneva Shore Path as a Great Place in the State of Wisconsin. 
 
The rich history of the 20+ mile lakeside trail starts in 2500 BC with various Indian cultures 
using the shore line path to navigate their way around the lake.  Chief Big Foot’s Potawatomi 
tribe walked the trail that connected their villages located around the lake.  Those villages are 
now the Villages of Fontana and Williams Bay and the City of Lake Geneva. 
 
Subsequently, according to the Historic Plaque located in our Library Park the Great Chicago 
Fire of 1871 brought many Chicago residents to the Lake Geneva area to build summer estates 
that were just as big and elegant as their Chicago homes.  The Shore Path winds its way through 
the front yards of many of those mansions, providing a neighborly view of the grand 
architecture. 
 
The path has been preserved by early settlers who said that the “20 feet leading to the shoreline 
be preserved as public domain.”  Property owners continue to be responsible for maintaining the 
path through each of their properties.  This makes the trail very unique.  The home owners put 
their own spin on their part of the Lake Geneva Shore Path; from benches and places to sit, 
artwork, water stations, and the path itself.  Some remain as dirt paths while others are composed 
of ornate brick patterns and stepping stones.   
 
Thank you for your consideration of the Lake Geneva Shore Path as a Great Place in Wisconsin. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Thomas A. Hartz 
Mayor 
 
 



 

   Chuck Saul 
415 S Wells St. Unit 206, Lake Geneva, WI 

          a brief resume 

Personal: 

• Married with three mature children, and thirteen grandchildren (combined family) 
• Have lived in Wisconsin twenty years (Twin Lakes), and moved to Lake Geneva in May of 2018 

Education: 

• BA Mathematics Physics – St. Joseph’s College 
• BS Electrical Engineering – University of Illinois 
• MBA Finance – University of Chicago 

Business Career: 

• Commercial real estate, thirty years of experience at the Merchandise Mart, and later with L J 
Sheridan & Co. Responsibilities generally in operating and developing high rise real 
estate….major projects included renovating several Chicago loop properties, the Regional 
Organ Bank of Illinois and multiple Sunset Foods. Managed various large property 
management staffs both on and off site, had both budget and construction management 
responsibilities. 

• Early career included administrative stints at major Chicago and Cincinnati hospitals managing 
facilities.  

• Board member of the Chicago Building Owners and Managers Association, including labor 
negotiations committee 

• Served on the Twin Lakes Smart Growth and Plan Commissions, as well as the Bell tech Credit 
Union board (Chicago) 

Retirement: 

• Current board member and active participant in Habitat for Humanity/Walworth County 
• Interests: golf, gardening (past tense), visiting grandkids and travel 
• ….and simply have a need to give back to my community 

  

 


	0-June 24, 2019 Council Agenda
	Regular City Council Meeting
	Monday, June 24, 2019 – 6:00 PM
	Council Chambers, City Hall

	04a-Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment
	Annual Comp Plan Amendment Memo Updated 7 June 2019
	Comp Plan Amendment Application (2019)

	08-June 10, 2019 Council Minutes
	Regular City Council Meeting Minutes
	Monday, June 10, 2019 – 6:00 PM
	Council Chambers, City Hall

	09a-Original Operator License FLR
	09b-Temporary Operator License- McCormick, Robert_Redacted
	09c- Temporary Class B License- Rotary Club- Oktoberfest
	10-Ordinance- 19-10- Amending the Child Safety Zones
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	11aa-Bid Tab_FINAL
	11ab-Payne & Dolan
	11ba-Century Fence, 2019 Shop
	11bb- 2019 Borrowing DPW
	2017-2019

	11c-Northsider's
	11d-Class A Beer- Tienda El Rancho
	11e-Class A Combination- Kelley Williamson Company
	11f-Class B Beer & Class C Wine- Candle Mercantile
	11ga-Resolution 19-R52-Fee Schedule- Ambulance Intercept Fee Amendment
	Schedule of Fees

	11ha-Prepaid Invoices June 4 FLR
	11hb-Regular Invoices June 4 FLR
	11hc-Prepaid Invoices June 18 FLR
	11hd-Regular Invoices June 18 FLR
	12aa-Resolution 19-R46-Christian Trist 100 N. Edwards Blvd. CUP
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	12ab-100 N Edwards Blvd CUP
	100 N. Edwards Magic Theater amended CUP
	100 N Edwards Blvd CUP - Outdoor Entertainment Final

	12ba-Resolution 19-R47-617 W. Main St. CUP music
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	12bb- 617 W Main St CUP
	617 W. Main St. CUP outdoor music CUP
	617 W Main Street CUP

	12ca- Resolution 19-R48-1550 Lake Shore Dr. CUP Pier Resolution
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	12cb-1550 Lake Shore Dr CUP
	1550 Lake Shore Dr. Pier
	1550 Lake Shore Dr CUP - Pier Packet

	12da- Resolution 19-R49-700 S. Lake Shore Dr. CUP Pier Resolution
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	12db-700 S Lake Shore Dr CUP
	700 S. Lake Shore Dr. Pier
	700 S Lake Shore Drive CUP

	12ea-Resolution 19-R-50-695 Wells St. CUP Commercial Lodging
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	12eb-695 Wells St CUP
	695 Wells St. Commercial Indoor Lodging (CUP)
	695 Wells Street CUP

	12fa-Resolution 19-R51- 406 Wells St PIP Commercial Lodging
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	12fb-406 Wells St PIP
	406 Wells St PIP
	406 S Wells Street PIP Amendment
	doc02433520190610142757
	406 S Wells St PIP Application_Dalton_5_6_19


	13-APA Great Places Nomination - Shore Path - 2019 - V2
	14a-Chuck Saul's 2019 resume



